

The Disciplined Discovery of Value®

Statement of Additional Information

January 28, 2020

KEELEY Small Cap Dividend Value Fund Class (A) Shares: KSDVX Class (I) Shares: KSDIX

> KEELEY Small-Mid Cap Value Fund Class (A) Shares: KSMVX Class (I) Shares: KSMIX

KEELEY Mid Cap Dividend Value Fund Class (A) Shares: KMDVX Class (I) Shares: KMDIX

141 WEST JACKSON BLVD., SUITE 2150 CHICAGO, ILLINOIS 60604 312-786-5050 800-422-3554

This Statement of Additional Information is not a prospectus, but provides additional information that should be read in conjunction with the current prospectus of, KEELEY Small Cap Dividend Value Fund, KEELEY Small-Mid Cap Value Fund, and KEELEY Mid Cap Dividend Value Fund (each, a "Fund" and collectively, the "Funds") dated January 28, 2020, and any additional supplements thereto (the "Prospectus").

Copies of the Prospectus and of the Annual and Semi-Annual Reports to Shareholders may be obtained free of charge from the Funds at the address and telephone number listed above, or on the Funds' website (www.keeleyfunds.com).

Audited financial statements, which are contained in the Funds' Annual Report dated September 30, 2019, are incorporated by reference into this Statement of Additional Information.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

<u>INTRODUCTION</u>	3
GENERAL INFORMATION AND HISTORY	3
INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES AND STRATEGIES	3
INVESTMENT POLICIES AND RISK CONSIDERATIONS	4
INVESTMENT RESTRICTIONS	9
PORTFOLIO TURNOVER	11
DISCLOSURE OF PORTFOLIO HOLDINGS	11
MANAGEMENT OF THE FUNDS	12
INVESTMENT ADVISER	19
PORTFOLIO MANAGERS	21
ADMINISTRATION SERVICES	22
FUND ACCOUNTANT, CUSTODIAN, TRANSFER AGENT, DIVIDEND DISBURSING AGENT AND SECURITIES	
<u>LENDING AGENT</u>	22
NET ASSET VALUE	23
PURCHASES AND REDEMPTION OF SHARES	23
SALES AT NET ASSET VALUE	23
EXCHANGE PRIVILEGE	24
<u>TAXATION</u>	24
<u>DISTRIBUTION OF SHARES</u>	29
DISTRIBUTION AND SHAREHOLDER SERVICING ARRANGEMENTS	29
PORTFOLIO TRANSACTIONS AND BROKERAGE	31
CONTROL PERSONS AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS OF SECURITIES	32
PROXY VOTING	36
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM	36
<u>COUNSEL</u>	36
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION	37

INTRODUCTION

This Statement of Additional Information ("SAI") contains further discussion of the Funds' securities and investment techniques that are described in the Prospectus. The information contained in this document is intended solely for investors who have read the Prospectus and are interested in a more detailed explanation of certain aspects of the Funds' securities and investment techniques. Captions and defined terms in the SAI generally correspond to those captions and terms as defined in the Prospectus.

This SAI does not constitute an offer to sell securities in any state or jurisdiction in which such offering may not lawfully be made. The delivery of the SAI at any time shall not imply that there has been no change in the affairs of the Funds since the date hereof.

GENERAL INFORMATION AND HISTORY

Keeley Funds, Inc. (the "Company"), is an open-end management investment company registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the "1940 Act"). The Company currently offers three different diversified series: the KEELEY Small Cap Dividend Value Fund ("Small Cap Dividend Value Fund"), the KEELEY Small-Mid Cap Value Fund ("Small-Mid Cap Value Fund"), and the KEELEY Mid Cap Dividend Value Fund ("Mid Cap Dividend Value Fund") (each, a "Fund" and collectively, the "Funds"). The Company was incorporated in Maryland on April 6, 2005 and commenced operations on August 15, 2005.

Each Fund offers two share classes: Class A Shares and Class I Shares. In addition to the fact that Class I Shares do not have a sales load, Class A Shares and Class I Shares have different expenses and other characteristics, allowing investors to choose the class that best suits their needs. All shares of the Funds have equal voting and liquidation rights, and each share is entitled to one vote on any matters which are presented to shareholders.

INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES AND STRATEGIES

INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES

The investment objective of each Fund is to seek capital appreciation.

The investment objectives for the Funds are not fundamental and can be changed by the Board of Directors without a vote of the shareholders.

INVESTMENT STRATEGIES

Small Cap Dividend Value Fund

Small Cap Dividend Value Fund seeks to achieve its investment objective by investing primarily in companies that have a small market capitalization, which Keeley-Teton Advisors, LLC (the "Adviser") defines as securities within the range of the Russell 2000 Value Index at the time of investment, and that currently pay or are reasonably expected to pay dividends to shareholders. The market cap range of the index changes daily, and as a result, the capitalization of small cap companies in which the Fund invests will also change. As of December 31, 2019, the market capitalization range of the Index was approximately \$24.5 million to \$6.8 billion. The Adviser looks for stocks with sustainable, expected growth in earnings and dividends and attempts to buy them when they are temporarily out-of-favor or undervalued by the market. The Fund has adopted a non-fundamental policy that, under normal market conditions, the Fund will have at least 80% of its net assets plus the amount of any borrowings invested in "dividend-paying" (as referenced in the Prospectus) common stocks and other equity-type securities (including preferred stock, convertible debt securities and warrants) of companies of small capitalization. As long as an investment continues to meet the Fund's other criteria, the Fund may choose to hold such securities even if the company's capitalization moves outside the Russell 2000® Value Index capitalization range. If less than 80% of the Fund's net assets (plus the amount of any borrowings for investment purposes) are invested in companies with a small market capitalization, the Fund will not invest in companies other than those with a small market capitalization until the 80% threshold is restored.

Small-Mid Cap Value Fund

Small-Mid Cap Value Fund seeks to achieve its investment objective by investing primarily in companies that have a small or a midsize market capitalization, which the Adviser defines as securities within the range of the Russell 2500® Value Index at the time of investment. The market cap range of the index changes daily, and as a result, the capitalization of small and mid-cap companies in which the Fund invests will also change. As of December 31, 2019, the market capitalization range of the Index was approximately

\$24.5 million to \$13.8 billion. The Fund has adopted a non-fundamental policy that under normal market conditions, it will have at least 80% of its net assets plus the amount of any borrowings invested in common stocks and other equity-type securities of companies of small or mid-size capitalization. If the Fund changes this policy, it will give shareholders at least 60 days' notice of the change. Other equity-type securities include preferred stock, convertible debt securities and warrants. Within this group of companies, the Fund will emphasize four basic categories. The first category is corporate spin-offs. The second category is companies involved in various types of corporate restructuring, including acquisitions, recapitalizations, and companies emerging from bankruptcy. From time to time, the Fund may invest a significant portion of its net assets in these first two categories. The third category is conversions of savings & loan associations and insurance companies from mutual to stock companies. These conversions are usually under-valued in relation to their peer group. The fourth category encompasses event driven, special situations that may create enhanced opportunities through industry and/or corporate dislocation. Examples may include overall industry change or restructuring, the presence of undervalued assets, and corporate or management change. The Adviser believes that this strategy allows the Fund to purchase equity shares with above- average potential for capital appreciation at relatively favorable market prices. Current dividend or interest income is not a factor when choosing securities. As long as an investment continues to meet the Fund's other criteria, the Fund may choose to hold such securities even if the company's capitalization moves outside the Russell 2500® Value Index capitalization range. If less than 80% of the Fund's net assets (plus the amount of any borrowings for investment purposes) are invested in companies with a small or a mid-sized market capitalization, the Fund will not invest in companies other than those with a small or a mid-sized market capitalization until the 80% threshold is restored.

Mid Cap Dividend Value Fund

Mid Cap Dividend Value Fund seeks to achieve its investment objective by investing primarily in companies that have a mid-size market capitalization, which the Adviser defines as securities within the range of the Russell Midcap Value Index at the time of investment, and that currently pay or are reasonably expected to pay dividends to shareholders. The market cap range of the index changes daily, and as a result, the capitalization of mid-cap companies in which the Fund invests will also change. As of December 31, 2019, the market capitalization range of the Index was approximately \$823.7 million to \$43.8 billion. The Adviser looks for stocks with sustainable, expected growth in earnings and dividends and attempts to buy them when they are temporarily out-of-favor or undervalued by the market. The Fund has adopted a non-fundamental policy that, under normal market conditions, the Fund will have at least 80% of its net assets plus the amount of any borrowings invested in "dividend-paying" (as defined in the Prospectus) common stocks and other equity-type securities (including preferred stock) of companies of mid-size capitalization. As long as an investment continues to meet the Fund's other criteria, the Fund may choose to hold such securities even if the company's capitalization moves outside the Russell Midcap® Value Index capitalization range. If less than 80% of the Fund's net assets (plus the amount of any borrowings for investment purposes) are invested in companies with a mid-size market capitalization, the Fund will not invest in companies other than those with a mid-size market capitalization until the 80% threshold is restored.

INVESTMENT POLICIES AND RISK CONSIDERATIONS

EQUITY SECURITIES

Each of the Funds invests in common stocks, which represent an equity interest (ownership) in a business. This ownership interest often gives the Funds the right to vote on measures affecting the company's organization and operations. The Funds also invest in other types of equity securities, including preferred stocks and securities convertible into common stocks (discussed below). Over time, common stocks historically have provided superior long-term capital growth potential. However, stock prices may decline over short or even extended periods. Stock markets tend to move in cycles, with periods of rising stock prices and periods of falling stock prices. As a result, the Funds should be considered long-term investments, designed to provide the best results when held for several years or more. The Funds may not be suitable investments if you have a short-term investment horizon or are uncomfortable with an investment whose value is likely to vary substantially.

SMALL-CAP AND MID-CAP EQUITY SECURITIES

The Funds may invest in common stocks of smaller capitalization companies. The Funds' investments in smaller capitalization stocks can involve greater risk than customarily is associated with investing in stocks of larger, more established companies. For example, smaller companies often have limited product lines, markets or financial resources, may be dependent for management on one or a few key persons, and can be more susceptible to losses. Also, their securities may be thinly traded (and therefore have to be sold at a discount from current prices or sold in small lots over an extended period of time), may be followed by fewer investment research analysts, and may be subject to wider price swings, thus creating a greater chance of loss than securities of larger capitalization companies. In addition, transaction costs in stocks of smaller capitalization companies may be higher than those of larger capitalization companies.

Because the Funds invest in stocks of issuers with smaller market capitalization, each can be expected to have more difficulty obtaining information about the issuers or valuing or disposing of its securities than it would if it were to concentrate on more widely held stocks.

DEBT SECURITIES

The Funds may invest in debt securities of corporate and governmental issuers that are "investment grade" securities (securities within the four highest grades (AAA/Aaa to BBB/Baa)) assigned by Standard and Poor's Corporation ("S&P") or Moody's Investor Services, Inc. ("Moody's").

The risks inherent in debt securities depend primarily on the term and quality of the obligations in a Fund's portfolio as well as on market conditions. In general, a decline in the prevailing levels of interest rates generally increases the value of debt securities, while an increase in rates usually reduces the value of those securities.

MONEY MARKET INSTRUMENTS

The Funds may invest their assets in high-quality money market instruments on an ongoing basis to provide liquidity.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES

The Funds may invest in convertible securities. Convertible securities may include corporate notes or preferred stock but are ordinarily a long-term debt obligation of the issuer convertible at a stated exchange rate into common stock of the issuer. As with all debt securities, the market value of convertible securities tends to decline as interest rates increase and, conversely, to increase as interest rates decline. Convertible securities generally offer lower interest or dividend yields than non-convertible securities of similar quality. However, when the market price of the common stock underlying a convertible security exceeds the conversion price, the price of the convertible security tends to reflect the value of the underlying common stock. As the market price of the underlying common stock declines, the convertible security tends to trade increasingly on a yield basis, and thus may not depreciate to the same extent as the underlying common stock.

Convertible securities generally rank senior to common stock in an issuer's capital structure and may entail less risk of declines in market value than the issuer's common stock. However, the extent to which such risk is reduced depends in large measure upon the degree to which the convertible security sells above its value as a fixed-income security.

RIGHTS AND WARRANTS

The Funds may invest in warrants and rights (other than those acquired in units or attached to other securities), which entitle the purchaser to buy equity securities at a specific price for a specific period of time. Warrants and rights have no voting rights, receive no dividends and have no rights with respect to the assets of the issuer.

AMERICAN DEPOSITARY RECEIPTS ("ADRs")

The Funds may invest in ADRs, which are certificates that evidence ownership of shares of a foreign issuer and are alternatives to purchasing directly the underlying foreign securities in their national markets and currencies. ADRs may be subject to certain of the risks associated with direct investments in the securities of foreign companies, such as currency, political, economic and market risks, because their values depend on the performance of the non-dollar denominated underlying foreign securities. Certain countries may limit the ability to convert an ADR into the underlying foreign security and vice versa, which may cause the security of the foreign company to trade at a discount or premium to the market price of the related ADR. ADRs may be purchased through "sponsored" or "unsponsored" facilities. A sponsored facility is established jointly by a depositary and the issuer of the underlying security. A depositary may establish an unsponsored facility without participation by the issuer of the deposited security. Unsponsored receipts may involve higher expenses and may be less liquid. Holders of unsponsored ADRs generally bear all the costs of such facilities, and the depositary of an unsponsored facility frequently is under no obligation to distribute shareholder communications received from the issuer of the deposited security or to pass through voting rights to the holders of such receipts in respect of the deposited securities.

FOREIGN SECURITIES

Each Fund may invest in securities of foreign issuers. The Funds do not consider ADRs and securities traded on a U.S. exchange to be foreign. Nevertheless, the Funds may have risk to foreign investments, as the securities of many companies in which the Funds invest may have significant exposure to foreign markets as a result of the company's products or services in those foreign markets. As a result, the domicile and/or the markets in which a company's securities trade may not be fully reflective of its sources of revenue. Such securities would be subject to some of the same risks as an investment in foreign securities, including the risk that political and economic events unique to a country or region will adversely affect those markets in which the company's products or services are sold. Investment in foreign securities may entail a greater degree of risk (including risks relating to exchange rate fluctuations, tax provisions, or expropriation of assets) than does investment in securities of domestic issuers. To the extent positions in portfolio securities are denominated in foreign currencies, a Fund's investment performance is affected by the strength or weakness of the U.S. dollar against these currencies. For example, if the dollar falls in value relative to the Japanese yen, the dollar value of a Japanese stock held in the portfolio will rise even though the price of the stock remains unchanged. Conversely, if the dollar rises in value relative to the yen, the dollar value of the Japanese stock will fall.

Investors should understand and consider carefully the risks involved in foreign investing. Investing in foreign securities, which are generally denominated in foreign currencies, involve certain risk considerations not typically associated with investing in U.S. securities. These considerations include: fluctuations in exchange rates of foreign currencies; possible imposition of exchange control regulation or currency restrictions that would prevent cash from being brought back to the United States; less publicly available information with respect to issuers of securities; less governmental supervision of stock exchanges, securities brokers, and issuers of securities; lack of uniform accounting, auditing, and financial reporting standards; lack of uniform settlement periods and trading practices; less liquidity and frequently greater price volatility in foreign markets than in the United States; possible imposition of foreign taxes; possible investment in securities of companies in developing as well as developed countries; and sometimes less advantageous legal, operational, and financial protection applicable to foreign sub-custodial arrangements. Also, there is the possibility of expropriation or confiscatory taxation, seizure or nationalization of foreign bank deposits or other assets, establishment of exchange controls, the adoption of foreign government restrictions. In addition, other adverse political, social, regulatory, geographic or diplomatic developments that could affect investment in these nations, including war; acts of terrorism; ethnic, religious or racial conflicts; the imposition of regulatory barriers; adverse weather; and natural disasters.

UNSEASONED ISSUERS

Each Fund may invest its net assets in the securities of "unseasoned issuers," defined as those issuers that, together with their predecessors, have been in operation for less than three years. The Adviser believes that investing in securities of unseasoned issuers may provide opportunities for long-term capital growth. Because unseasoned issuers have only a brief operating history and may have more limited markets and financial resources, the risks of investing in such securities are greater than with common stock of more established companies.

ILLIQUID SECURITIES

Each Fund may invest up to 15% of its net assets in securities for which there is no ready market ("illiquid securities"), including, but not limited to, those securities that are not readily marketable because they are restricted securities. Restricted securities are securities that have not been registered under the Securities Act of 1933 and are thus subject to restrictions on resale. Under the supervision of the Board of Directors, the Adviser determines the liquidity of each Fund's investments. Securities that may be sold pursuant to Rule 144A under the Securities Act of 1933 may be considered liquid by the Adviser. A position in restricted securities might adversely affect the liquidity and marketability of a portion of a Fund's portfolio, and a Fund might not be able to dispose of its holdings in such securities promptly or at reasonable prices. In those instances where a Fund is required to have restricted securities held by it registered prior to sale by the Fund and the Fund does not have a contractual commitment from the issuer or seller to pay the costs of such registration, the gross proceeds from the sale of securities would be reduced by the registration costs and underwriting discounts.

REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUSTS

The Funds may invest in real estate investment trusts ("REITs"). Although the Funds will not invest directly in real estate, the Funds may invest in equity securities of issuers primarily engaged in or related to the real estate industry. Therefore, an investment in REITs is subject to certain risks associated with the direct ownership of real estate and with the real estate industry in general. These risks include, among others: possible declines in the value of real estate; risks related to general and local economic conditions; possible lack of availability of mortgage funds; overbuilding; extended vacancies of properties; increases in competition, property taxes and operating expenses; changes in zoning laws; costs resulting from the clean-up of, and liability to third parties for damages resulting from, environmental problems; casualty or condemnation losses; uninsured damages from floods, earthquakes or other natural disasters; limitations on and variations in rents; changes in interest rates; and acts of terrorism, war or other acts of violence. To the extent that assets underlying the REITs' investments are concentrated geographically, by property type or in certain other respects, the REITs may be subject to certain of the foregoing risks to a greater extent. Equity REITs may be affected by changes in the value of the underlying property owned by the REITs, while mortgage REITs may be affected by the quality of any credit extended. REITs are dependent upon management skills, are not diversified, are subject to heavy cash flow dependency, default by borrowers and selfliquidation. REITs also are subject to the possibilities of failing to qualify for tax-free pass-through of net income and realized gains under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), and failing to maintain their exemptions from registration under the 1940 Act. REITs (especially mortgage REITs) are also subject to interest rate risks. When interest rates decline, the value of a REIT's investment in fixed-rate obligations can be expected to rise. Conversely, when interest rates rise, the value of a REIT's investment in fixed-rate obligations can be expected to decline. In contrast, as interest rates on adjustable rate mortgage loans are reset periodically, yields on a REIT's investment in such loans will gradually align themselves to reflect changes in market interest rates, causing the value of such investments to fluctuate less dramatically in response to interest rate fluctuations than would investments in fixed-rate obligations.

Investing in REITs involves risks similar to those associated with investing in small-capitalization companies. REITs may have limited financial resources, may trade less frequently and in a limited volume and may be subject to more abrupt or erratic price movements than larger company securities.

Investments in mortgage-related securities involve certain risks. In periods of declining interest rates, prices of fixed-income securities tend to rise. However, during such periods, the rate of prepayment of mortgages underlying mortgage-related securities tends to increase, with the result that such prepayments must be reinvested by the issuer at lower rates. In addition, the value of such securities may fluctuate in response to the market's perception of the creditworthiness of the issuers of mortgage-related securities owned by the Funds. Because investments in mortgage-related securities are interest sensitive, the ability of the issuer to reinvest or to reinvest favorably in underlying mortgages may be limited by government regulation or tax policy.

REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

The Funds may enter into repurchase agreements, which are agreements pursuant to which a Fund acquires securities from a third party with the understanding that the seller will repurchase them at a fixed price on an agreed date. These agreements may be made with respect to any of the portfolio securities in which the Fund is authorized to invest. Repurchase agreements may be characterized as loans secured by the underlying securities. The use of repurchase agreements involves certain risks. For example, if the seller of securities under a repurchase agreement defaults on its obligation to repurchase the underlying securities, as a result of its bankruptcy or otherwise, a Fund will seek to dispose of such securities, which action could involve costs or delays. If the seller becomes insolvent and subject to liquidation or reorganization under applicable bankruptcy or other laws, a Fund's ability to dispose of the underlying securities may be restricted. Finally, it is possible that a Fund may not be able to substantiate its interest in the underlying securities. To minimize this risk, the custodian will hold the securities underlying the repurchase agreement at all times in an amount at least equal to the repurchase price, including accrued interest. If the seller fails to repurchase the securities, the Fund may suffer a loss to the extent proceeds from the sale of the underlying securities are less than the repurchase prices.

EXCHANGE-TRADED FUNDS ("ETFs") AND EXCHANGE-TRADED NOTES ("ETNs")

The Funds may invest in ETFs and ETNs, subject to the limits set forth in their investment restrictions. See "Investment Restrictions" below. ETFs are registered investment companies with a stated investment objective and are subject to various investment policies and restrictions. An investment in an ETF generally presents the same primary risks as an investment in a conventional open-end fund that has the same investment objectives, strategies and policies. ETNs are senior, unsecured, unsubordinated debt securities. They are designed to provide investors with a way to access the returns of market benchmarks or strategies. ETNs are not ETFs, but they do share several characteristics. For example, they trade on an exchange, can be shorted and they are linked to the return of a benchmark index.

The Adviser generally expects to purchase shares of ETFs through broker-dealers in transactions on a securities exchange, and in such cases, the Funds will pay customary brokerage commissions for each purchase and sale. A Fund also may acquire shares of an ETF by depositing a specified portfolio of the ETF's underlying securities, as well as a cash payment generally equal to accumulated dividends of the securities (net of expenses) up to the time of deposit, with the ETF's custodian, in exchange for which the ETF will issue a quantity of new shares sometimes referred to as a "creation unit." Similarly, shares of an ETF purchased on an exchange may be accumulated until they represent a creation unit, and the creation unit may be redeemed in-kind for a portfolio of the underlying securities (based on the ETF's net asset value ("NAV")) together with a cash payment generally equal to accumulated dividends as of the date of redemption. The Funds may redeem creation units for the underlying securities (and any applicable cash) and may assemble a portfolio of the underlying securities (and any required cash) to purchase creation units, if the Adviser believes it is in a Fund's interest to do so.

Investments in ETFs involve certain inherent risks generally associated with investments in a broadly-based portfolio of stocks, including: (1) the general level of stock prices may decline, thereby adversely affecting the value of each unit of the ETF; (2) an ETF may not fully replicate the performance of its benchmark index because of the temporary unavailability of certain index securities in the secondary market, or discrepancies between the ETF and the index with respect to the weighting of securities or number of stocks held; (3) an ETF also may be adversely affected by the performance of the specific index, market sector or group of industries on which it is based; and (4) an ETF may not track an index as well as a traditional index mutual fund because ETFs are valued by the market and, therefore, there may be a difference between the market value and the ETF's NAV.

There is a risk that ETFs may terminate due to extraordinary events. For example, any of the service providers to the ETFs, such as the trustee or sponsor, may close or otherwise fail to perform their obligations to the ETF, and the ETF may not be able to find a substitute service provider. Also, the ETFs may be dependent upon licenses to use the various indices as a basis for determining their compositions and/or otherwise to use certain trade names. If those licenses are terminated, the respective ETFs also may terminate. In addition, an ETF may terminate if its net assets fall below a certain amount.

The Funds' investments in ETNs are subject to issuer credit risk. For example, if the credit rating of the issuer of the ETN is downgraded, a Fund's investment may drop in value, even if no change in value has occurred in the underlying index. In addition, in a default situation involving an ETN, it is possible that a Fund could lose its principal investment.

Although the Adviser believes that in the event of the termination of an ETF they will be able to invest in shares of an alternate ETF tracking the same market index or another index covering the same general market, there can be no assurance that shares of an alternate ETF would be available for investment at that time.

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT COMPANIES ("BDCs")

The Funds may invest in BDCs to the extent permitted by applicable law or the Funds' respective fundamental and non-fundamental investment restrictions. BDCs are a type of closed-end investment company that typically invest in and lend to small- and medium-sized private and certain public companies that may not have access to public equity markets to raise capital. BDCs are unique in that at least 70% of their investments must be made in private and certain public U.S. businesses, and BDCs are required to make available significant managerial assistance to their portfolio companies. Closed-end investment companies and BDCs are not taxed on income distributed to their shareholders, provided they comply with the applicable requirements of the Code.

As a shareholder of another investment company, a Fund will bear its pro rata portion of the other investment company's expenses, including advisory fees, in addition to the expenses the Fund bears directly in connection with its own operation. However, BDCs are akin to operating companies in that their expenses are not direct expenses paid by fund shareholders and are not used to calculate the fund's net asset value. SEC rules nevertheless require that any expenses incurred by a BDC be included in a fund's expense ratio as "Acquired Fund Fees and Expenses." The expense ratio of a Fund that holds a BDC will thus overstate what the Fund actually spends on portfolio management, administrative services, and other shareholder services by an amount equal to these Acquired Fund Fees and Expenses. Acquired Fund Fees and Expenses are not included in a Fund's financial statements, which provide a clearer picture of a fund's actual operating expenses.

MASTER-LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS ("MLPs")

The Funds may invest in MLPs, subject to the limits set forth in their investment restrictions. MLPs are limited partnerships registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") that issue units publicly traded on a securities exchange or in the over-the-counter market. An MLP consists of one or more general partners who manage the MLP and one or more limited partners who contribute capital. Generally, limited partners are not involved in the day-to-day management of an MLP.

An investment in an MLP generally is subject to the risks applicable to investing in a partnership and may offer investors fewer protections than an investment in a corporation. Investments in MLPs involve risks that differ from investments in common stocks, including, among others, greater illiquidity risks and risks related to limited control and limited voting rights. Additionally, MLPs may have limited financial resources, their securities may trade infrequently and in limited volume, and they may be subject to more abrupt or erratic price movements than securities of large companies.

MLPs often are pass-through entities or businesses that are taxed at the unitholder level and generally are not subject to federal or state income tax at the entity level. Annual income, gains, losses, deductions and credits of an MLP pass through directly to its unitholders. Net income from an interest in a "qualified publicly traded partnership," which many MLPs are treated as for federal tax purposes, is qualifying income for an entity such as a Fund that is a regulated investment company. Although unitholders of an MLP generally are limited in their liability, an MLP's creditors may have the right to seek the return of distributions made to the MLP's unitholders if that liability arose before the distributions were paid. This liability may stay attached to the unitholder even after the units are sold.

CYBERSECURITY

The Funds, like all companies, may be susceptible to operational and information security risks. Cyber security failures or breaches of the Funds or their service providers or the issuers of securities in which the Funds invest, all have the ability to cause disruptions and impact business operations, potentially resulting in financial losses, the inability of shareholders to transact business, violations of applicable privacy and other laws, regulatory fines, penalties, reputational damage, reimbursement or other compensation costs, and/or additional compliance costs. The Funds and their shareholders could be negatively impacted as a result.

GOVERNMENT INTERVENTION IN FINANCIAL MARKETS

Global economies and financial markets are increasingly interconnected, which increases the possibility that conditions in one country or region may adversely affect companies in a different country or region. In the past, instability in the financial markets has led governments and regulators around the world to take a number of unprecedented actions designed to support certain financial institutions and segments of the financial markets that have experienced extreme volatility, and in some cases a lack of liquidity. Governments, their regulatory agencies, or self-regulatory organizations may take actions that affect the regulation of the instruments in which a Fund invests, or the issuers of such instruments, in ways that are unforeseeable. Legislation or regulation may also change the way in which a Fund itself is regulated. Such legislation or regulation could limit or preclude a Fund's ability to achieve its investment objective.

Governments or their agencies may also acquire distressed assets from financial institutions and acquire ownership interests in those institutions. The implications of government ownership and disposition of these assets are unclear, and such a program may have positive or negative effects on the liquidity, valuation and performance of the Funds' portfolio holdings. Furthermore, volatile financial markets can expose the Funds to greater market and liquidity risk and potential difficulty in valuing portfolio instruments held by the Funds.

The SEC and its staff are reportedly engaged in various initiatives and reviews that seek to improve and modernize the regulatory structure governing investment companies. These efforts appear to be focused on risk identification and controls in various areas, including imbedded leverage through the use of derivatives and other trading practices, cybersecurity, liquidity, enhanced regulatory and public reporting requirements and the evaluation of systemic risks. Any new rules, guidance or regulatory initiatives resulting from these efforts could increase a Fund's expenses and impact its returns to shareholders or, in the extreme case, impact or limit its use of various portfolio management strategies or techniques and adversely impact the Fund.

In particular, in October 2016, the SEC adopted a new liquidity risk management rule requiring open-end funds, such as the Funds to establish a liquidity risk management program and enhance disclosures regarding fund liquidity. Rule 22e-4 under the 1940 Act (the "Liquidity Rule"), requires open-end funds, such as the Funds, to establish a liquidity risk management program and make certain disclosures regarding fund liquidity. As required by the Liquidity Rule, the Funds have implemented liquidity risk management program (the "Liquidity Program"), and the Board has appointed the liquidity risk program administrator of the Liquidity Program. The Liquidity rule may impact the Funds' performances and abilities to achieve their investment objective.

The Trump administration has called for significant changes to U.S. trade, healthcare, immigration, foreign, and government regulatory policy. In this regard, there is significant uncertainty with respect to legislation, regulation and government policy at the federal level, as well as the state and local levels. Recent events have created a climate of heightened uncertainty and introduced new and difficult-to-quantify macroeconomic and political risks with potentially far-reaching implications. There has been a corresponding meaningful increase in the uncertainty surrounding interest rates, inflation, foreign exchange rates, trade volumes and fiscal and monetary policy. To the extent the U.S. Congress or Trump administration implements changes to U.S. policy, those changes may impact, among other things, the U.S. and global economy, international trade and relations, unemployment, immigration, corporate taxes, healthcare, the U.S. regulatory environment, inflation and other areas. Some particular areas identified as subject to potential change, amendment or repeal include the Dodd-Frank Act, including the Volcker Rule and various swaps and derivatives regulations, credit risk retention requirements and the authorities of the Federal Reserve, the Financial Stability Oversight Council and the SEC. Although it is impossible to predict the impact, if any, of these changes to a Fund's business, they may adversely affect a Fund's business, financial condition, operating results and cash flows.

In addition, the tax legislation commonly referred to as the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the "Act") made substantial changes to the Code. Among those changes are a significant permanent reduction in the generally applicable corporate tax rate, changes in the taxation of individuals and other non-corporate taxpayers that generally but not universally reduce their taxes on a temporary basis subject to "sunset" provisions, the elimination or modification of various previously allowed deductions (including substantial limitations on the deductibility of interest and, in the case of individuals, the deduction for personal state and local taxes), certain additional limitations on the deduction of net operating losses, certain preferential rates of taxation on certain dividends and certain business income derived by non-corporate taxpayers in comparison to other ordinary income recognized by such taxpayers, and significant changes to the international tax rules. The effect of these, and the many other changes made in the Act is highly uncertain, both in terms of their direct effect on the taxation of an investment in the Funds' shares and their indirect effect on the value of their assets, Funds' shares or market conditions generally. Furthermore, many of the provisions of the Act will require guidance through the issuance of Treasury regulations in order to assess their effect. There may be a substantial delay before such Treasury regulations are promulgated, increasing the uncertainty as to the ultimate effect of the statutory amendments on the funds. It is also likely that there will be technical corrections legislation proposed with respect to the Act, the effect of which cannot be predicted and may be adverse to the Funds, or Fund shareholders.

INVESTMENT RESTRICTIONS

Each Fund has adopted certain investment restrictions. Unless otherwise noted, whenever an investment restriction states a maximum percentage of a Fund's assets that may be invested in any security or other asset, such percentage restriction will be determined immediately after and as a result of the Fund's acquisition of such security or other asset. Accordingly, any subsequent change in values, net assets, total assets, or other circumstances will not be considered when determining whether the investment complies with a Fund's investment limitations.

FUNDAMENTAL INVESTMENT RESTRICTIONS

Each Fund has adopted the following fundamental investment restrictions, which cannot be changed without the approval of the holders of the lesser of (i) 67% of the Fund's shares present or represented at a shareholders' meeting at which the holders of more than 50% of such shares are present or represented; or (ii) more than 50% of the outstanding shares of the Fund:

- 1. With respect to 75% of the Fund's net assets, the Fund will not invest more than 5% of such net assets (valued at the time of investment) in securities of any one issuer, except in U.S. government obligations.
- 2. With respect to 75% of the Fund's net assets, the Fund will not acquire securities of any one issuer which at the time of investment represent more than 10% of the voting securities of the issuer.
- The Fund will not act as an underwriter or distributor of securities other than its own capital stock, except insofar as it may be
 deemed an underwriter for purposes of the Securities Act of 1933 on disposition of securities acquired subject to legal or
 contractual restrictions on resale.
- 4. The Fund will not lend money, but this restriction shall not prevent the Fund from investing in (i) a portion of an issue of debt securities or (ii) repurchase agreements.
- 5. The Fund will not purchase or sell real estate, interests in real estate or real estate limited partnerships, although it may invest in marketable securities of issuers that invest in real estate or interests in real estate.
- 6. The Fund will not pledge any of its assets, except to secure indebtedness permitted by the Fund's investment restrictions.
- 7. The Fund will not concentrate its investments by investing 25% or more of the value of the Fund's total assets taken at market value at the time of the investment (other than U.S. government securities) in companies of any one industry.
- 8. The Fund will not borrow, except that the Fund may borrow from banks as a temporary measure amounts up to 10% of its total assets, provided that (i) the total of reverse repurchase agreements and such borrowings will not exceed 10% of the Fund's total assets and (ii) the Fund will not purchase securities when its borrowings (including reverse repurchase agreements) exceed 5% of total assets. The Fund does not currently intend to enter into reverse repurchase agreements.
- 9. The Fund will not purchase and sell commodities or commodity contracts except that it may enter into forward contracts to hedge securities transactions made in foreign currencies. This limitation does not apply to financial instrument futures and options on such futures.
- 10. The Fund will not issue senior securities, except for reverse repurchase agreements and borrowings as permitted by the Fund's other investment restrictions.

NON-FUNDAMENTAL INVESTMENT RESTRICTIONS

In addition to the fundamental restrictions listed above, the Funds have adopted the following non-fundamental restrictions, which may be changed by the Board of Directors without shareholder approval:

- 1. The Fund will not acquire securities of other investment companies except (i) by purchase in the open market, where no commission or profit to a sponsor or dealer results from such purchase other than the customary broker's commission, or (ii) where the acquisition results from a dividend or a merger, consolidation or other reorganization. In addition to this investment restriction, the 1940 Act provides that the Fund may neither purchase more than 3% of the voting securities of any one investment company nor invest more than 10% of the Fund's assets (valued at time of investment) in all investment company securities purchased by the Fund.
- 2. The Fund will not invest more than 15% of its net assets in securities for which there is no ready market (including restricted securities and repurchase agreements maturing in more than seven days).

In addition, Small-Mid Cap Value Fund has adopted the following additional non-fundamental restrictions, which may be changed by the Board of Directors without shareholder approval:

- 1. The Fund will not participate in a joint trading account, purchase securities on margin (other than short-term credits as necessary for the clearance of purchases and sales of securities) or sell securities short (unless the Fund owns an equal amount of such securities or owns securities that are convertible or exchangeable without payment of further consideration into an equal amount of such securities). The Fund does not currently intend to sell securities short even under the conditions described in the list of fundamental investment restrictions above.
- 2. The Fund will not invest for the purpose of exercising control or management of any company.
- 3. The Fund will not invest in interests in oil, gas or other mineral exploration or development programs or leases, although it may invest in marketable securities of issuers engaged in oil, gas or mineral exploration.

"NAMES RULE" INVESTMENTS

As stated above, and in accordance with Rule 35d-1 under the 1940 Act (the "names rule"), each Fund has adopted a non-fundamental policy to invest, under normal circumstances, at least 80% of its net assets, plus any borrowings for investment purposes, in securities suggested by the name of the Fund, as follows:

- Small Cap Dividend Value Fund will invest in "dividend-paying" (as referenced in the Prospectus) small market capitalization
 common stocks and other equity-type securities (including preferred stock, convertible debt securities and warrants) of such
 companies.
- Small-Mid Cap Value Fund will invest in common stocks and other equity-type securities of small and mid-cap companies.
- Mid Cap Dividend Value Fund will invest in "dividend-paying" (as defined in the Prospectus) mid-size market capitalization common stocks and other equity-type securities (including preferred stock) of such companies.

Each Fund may make additional commitments more restrictive than the restrictions listed above so as to permit the sale of shares of the Fund in certain states. Should a Fund determine that a commitment is no longer in the best interest of the Fund and its shareholders, the Fund reserves the right to revoke the commitment by terminating the sale of Fund shares in the state involved.

TEMPORARY DEFENSIVE MEASURES

The investments and strategies described above are those that are used under normal conditions. During adverse economic, market or other conditions, a Fund may assume temporary defensive positions, such as investing up to 100% of its assets in investments that would not ordinarily be consistent with the Fund's objective, including cash and cash equivalents. A Fund will do so only if the Adviser believes that the risk of loss outweighs the opportunity for capital gains or higher income. The Funds cannot guarantee that they will achieve their investment goal when adopting a temporary defensive investment position.

PORTFOLIO TURNOVER

Each Fund calculates portfolio turnover rate by dividing the value of the lesser of purchases or sales of portfolio securities for the fiscal period by the monthly average of the value of portfolio securities owned by the Fund during the fiscal period. A 100% portfolio turnover rate would occur, for example, if all of the portfolio securities (other than short-term securities) were replaced once during the fiscal period. Portfolio turnover rates will vary from year to year, depending on market conditions. Increased portfolio turnover may result in greater brokerage commissions.

DISCLOSURE OF PORTFOLIO HOLDINGS

The Funds have adopted a policy that they will disclose publicly Fund portfolio holdings (other than to rating agencies and third-party service providers) only when that information is filed with the SEC or sent to shareholders pursuant to annual, semi-annual or quarterly reports. In most cases, this information will be filed with the SEC sixty days after the date of public disclosure. Information may be sent to shareholders earlier than sixty days after its date, but in such cases, the information will be sent to all shareholders at the same time. Each Fund discloses holdings on a monthly basis to certain rating and ranking organizations, including: Standard & Poor's, Bloomberg, Thomson Financial, Lipper, Morningstar, Factset and other similar organizations. Each Fund discloses its holdings on a quarterly basis to Vickers. The Funds have no special agreements with the rating and ranking organizations that require they keep the information provided to them confidential or that impose restrictions on them with respect to trading based on the disclosure of such information. No information is released until it is at least 30 days old and all information is sent to all parties at the same time. Each Fund may disclose portfolio information to the Fund's third-party service providers, without lag, as part of the Fund's normal investment activities. Third-party service providers receive portfolio holdings information more frequently than this information is filed with the SEC or sent to shareholders, when there is a legitimate business purpose for such disclosure. These third-party service providers include Gabelli Funds, LLC (the "Administrator"), the Funds' administrator and fund accountant; BNY Mellon Investment Servicing (US) Inc. (the "Sub-Administrator"), the Funds' sub-administrator; DST Asset Manager Solutions, Inc. (the "Transfer Agent"), the Funds' transfer agent; and State Street Bank and Trust Company (the "Custodian"), the Funds' custodian; IDC, the Funds' pricing service; PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP ("PwC"), the Funds' independent registered public accounting firm; and Paul Hastings LLP, the Funds' counsel.

The Funds' contracts with the administrator, transfer agent, fund accountant, and custodian include provisions that require they treat all information that they receive from each Fund as confidential, not use that information for any purpose other than to perform their obligations under their contracts with the Funds, and not disclose that information to any third-party without written authorization from each Fund or pursuant to court order.

The Funds' Chief Compliance Officer ("CCO") reviews the policies and procedures of the Funds' third-party service providers to ensure that their policies and procedures restrict trading based on information they receive from clients and provide for confidential handling of client information. Under the Company's policies, no one has authority to make any other disclosure of portfolio information. Officers and directors of the Company, the Adviser, and officers of G.distributors, LLC (the "Distributor") who are also officers of the Company or the Adviser, of necessity have access to information about a Fund and its investments, including its portfolio holdings, but the Company and the Funds' Adviser, Distributor have adopted policies and procedures to prevent the unfair use by them of nonpublic information. The Company's code of ethics also prohibits access persons (who include officers and directors of the Company) from buying and selling securities which a Fund is buying or selling or considering buying or selling, except with the prior approval of the President of the Company or his designee.

Personal trading information is compiled and reviewed monthly by the CCO and/or his designee. It is against the policy of the Company for the Company or its Adviser to receive compensation for the disclosure of portfolio holdings information. The portfolio holdings disclosure policy of the Company has been approved by the Funds' Board of Directors and, under the Company's procedures, may only be changed with approval from the Board of Directors.

MANAGEMENT OF THE FUNDS

GENERAL

The Company is governed by a Board of Directors (the "Board"), which has overall management responsibility for the Company and the Funds and provides oversight of the management of each Fund's business affairs. The Directors establish procedures and oversee and review the performance of the Adviser, Distributor, and others who perform services for the Company.

The Board is composed of nine Directors, seven of whom (Laura D. Alter, Anthony S. Colavita, James P. Conn, Jerome J. Klingenberger, Sean Lowry, Michael J. Melarkey and Kuni Nakamura) are not "interested" Directors, as such term is defined in the 1940 Act (each, an "Independent Director"), and two of whom (Nicholas F. Galluccio and Kevin M. Keeley) are interested persons of the Company. Mr. Galluccio is considered an "interested person" of the Company because of his role as President and Chief Executive Officer of Teton Advisors, Inc. ("Teton"), the parent company of the Adviser, and Mr. Keeley is considered an "interested person" of the Company because of his role as Executive Chairman and President of the Adviser.

Company officers and the administrator are responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Funds. The Adviser is responsible for investment management of the Funds under an investment advisory agreement. The Company, the Adviser and the Distributor each have adopted Codes of Ethics under Rule 17j-1 of the 1940 Act. Those Codes of Ethics permit personnel subject to the Codes to invest in securities, including securities that may be purchased or held by the Funds.

COMMITTEES

The Board has established an Audit Committee in connection with its governance of the Funds.

The Company's Audit Committee consists of three members: Messrs. Klingenberger (Chairman) and Nakamura and Ms. Alter, who are Independent Directors. The Audit Committee operates pursuant to a Charter, which sets forth that the function of the Audit Committee is oversight; it is management's responsibility to maintain appropriate systems for accounting and internal control and it is the independent registered public accounting firm's responsibility to plan and carry out a proper audit. The Audit Committee is generally responsible for reviewing and evaluating issues related to the accounting and financial reporting policies and practices of the Company, its internal controls, and as appropriate, the internal controls of certain service providers, overseeing the quality and objectivity of the Company's financial statements and the audit thereof and to act as a liaison between the Board and the Company's independent registered public accounting firm. During the Company's fiscal year ended September 30, 2019, the Audit Committee met two times.

BOARD LEADERSHIP STRUCTURE

Each Director was appointed to serve on the Board of Directors because of his or her experience, skills and qualification (please see the section "Experience of Directors" below). Mr. Nicholas Galluccio and Mr. Kevin Keeley each will serve as a Co-Chairman of the Board. Mr. James Conn will serve as Lead Independent Director. The Board of Directors believes that its leadership structure is appropriate in light of the size of the Company and the nature of its business and is consistent with industry practices. In particular:

Board Composition. The Board of Directors believes that having a majority of its Directors be Independent Directors is appropriate and in the best interest of the Company's shareholders. Nevertheless, the Directors also believe that having interested persons serve on the Board brings a corporate and financial viewpoint that is, in the Board's view, a crucial element in the Directors' decision-making process.

BOARD OVERSIGHT OF FUND RISK

Each Fund is subject to a number of risks, including operational, investment and compliance risks. The Board, directly and through its Committees, as part of its oversight responsibilities, oversees the services provided by the Adviser in connection with the management and operations of a Fund, as well as their associated risks.

The Board has not established a standing risk committee. Rather, the Board requires the Adviser to report to the Board, on a regular and as-needed basis, on actual and possible risks to the Company as a whole. The Adviser reports to the Board on the various elements of risk that have affected, or that may affect, the business of the Company, including investment risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and operational risk, as well as the overall business risk relating to the Funds, including based upon industry norms.

Under the oversight of the Board, the Company, the Adviser and other service providers have adopted policies, procedures and controls to address these risks. The Board, directly and through its Committees, receives and reviews information from the Adviser, other service providers, the Company's independent registered public accounting firm, and counsel to the Funds and Independent Directors to assist it in its oversight responsibilities. This information includes, but is not limited to, reports regarding a Fund's investments, including performance and investment practices, valuation of portfolio securities and compliance.

Additionally, the Board has appointed a Chief Compliance Officer ("CCO"), who reports directly to the Board's Independent Directors and who provides presentations to the Board at its quarterly meetings, in addition to presenting an annual report to the Board in accordance with the Funds' compliance policies and procedures and the rules under the 1940 Act. The CCO regularly discusses the relevant risk issues affecting the Company during private meetings with the Independent Directors. The CCO also provides the Board with updates on the application of the Funds' compliance policies and procedures and how these procedures are designed to mitigate risk. Finally, the CCO reports to the Board immediately in-between Board meetings in case any problems arise relating to the Funds' compliance policies and procedures that could expose (or that might have the potential to expose) the Funds to risk.

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

Information about the Directors and officers of the Company is set forth in the table below. The table includes, for each Director, the term of office and length of time served, principal occupations during at least the past five years, the number of portfolios overseen in the Fund Complex (which includes all U.S. registered investment management companies for which Keeley-Teton or its affiliates currently serves as an investment adviser) and other directorships held, if any, and for each officer of the Company, positions held, their terms of office and length of time served, and their principal business occupations during at least the past five years. Officers of the Company are appointed by the Board and serve at the pleasure of the Board.

Number of

Name and Year of Birth Independent Directors*	Position(s) Held with Each Fund	Term of Office ⁽⁴⁾ and Length of Time Served	Principal Occupation(s) During at Least the Past Five Years	Portfolios Overseen Within Fund Complex	Other Directorships Held Outside the Fund Complex
Laura D. Alter 1960	Director	Since 2014	Retired since 2010; previously, Managing Director and Senior Partner of Fixed Income, Harris Investments (1994- 2010); Fund Manager for Harris Insight family of funds (1994-2010)	3	None
Anthony S. Colavita ⁽¹⁾ 1961	Director	Since 2017	Attorney, Anthony S. Colavita, P.C.	18	None
James P. Conn 1938	Director	Since 2017	Former Managing Director and Chief Investment Officer of Financial Security Assurance Holdings, Ltd. (1992-1998)	24	None

Jerome J. Klingenberger 1955	Director	Since 1999	Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (since 2006) of Grayhill, Inc. (human interface solutions)	3	None
Sean Lowry 1953	Director	Since 1999	Retired since 2015; formerly, Executive Vice President, Pacor Mortgage Corp. (1992-2015)	3	None
Michael J. Melarkey 1949	Director	Since 2017	Of Counsel in the law firm of McDonald Carano Wilson LLP; Partner in the law firm of Avansino, Melarkey, Knobel, Mulligan & McKenzie (1980-2015)	21	Chairman of Southwest Gas Corporation (natural gas utility)
Kuni Nakamura 1968	Director	Since 2017	President of Advanced Polymer, Inc. (chemical manufacturing company); President of KEN Enterprises, Inc. (real estate); Trustee on Long Island University Board of Trustees	33	None

Interested Directors and Officers*

Name and Year of Birth	Position(s) Held with Each Fund	Term of Office ⁽⁴⁾ and Length of Time Served	Principal Occupation(s) During at Least the Past Five Years	Number of Portfolios Director Overseen Within Fund Complex Comp	ships itside ind
Nicholas F. Galluccio ⁽²⁾ 1950	Co-Chairman and Director	Co-Chairman and Director since 2017	President and Chief Executive Officer of Teton Advisors, Inc. (since 2008); Group Managing Director, U.S. Equities (2004-2008), Managing Director, U.S. Equities (1994-2004), Senior Vice President (1990-1994) and Vice President (1982- 1990) of Trust Company of the West (TCW)	9	
Kevin M. Keeley ⁽³⁾ 1967	Co-Chairman, Director and President	Co-Chairman and Director since 2017; President since 2015	Executive Chairman of Keeley-Teton Advisors, LLC (since 2017); President of Keeley-Teton Advisors, LLC (since 2018); President (2015- 2017) and Executive Vice President (2010- 2015) of Joley Corp.; President (2015- 2017) and Executive Vice President (2010-2015) of Keeley Holdings, Inc.; President of Keeley Asset Management Corp. (2015- 2017); Senior Vice President of Keeley Asset Management Corp. and Keeley Investment Corp. (2010-2015).	3	

Name and Year of Birth	Position(s) Held with Each Fund	Term of Office ⁽⁴⁾ and Length of Time Served	Principal Occupation(s) During at Least the Past Five Years
Kevin M. Chin 1965	Vice President	Since 2015	Portfolio Manager of Keeley-Teton Advisors, LLC (since 2017); Chief Investment Officer (2017-2018) of Keeley-Teton Advisors, LLC; Chief Investment Officer of Keeley Asset Management Corp. (2015-2017); Senior Vice President, Portfolio Manager of Keeley Asset Management Corp. (2013-2017)
Thomas E. Browne, Jr. 1963	Vice President	Since 2018	Portfolio Manager of Keeley-Teton Advisors, LLC (since 2017); Senior Vice President, Portfolio Manager of Keeley Asset Management Corp. (2009-2017)
David M. Goldman 1973	Secretary	Since 2018	Secretary of Keeley-Teton Advisors, LLC (since 2018); Assistant Secretary (2017-2018); Chief Compliance Officer and General Counsel of Teton Advisors, Inc. (2011-2017); Vice President, Corporate Development and General Counsel of Gabelli Funds, LLC (since 2011)
John C. Ball 1976	Treasurer	Since 2018	Treasurer of Other Registered Investment Companies within the Fund Complex in which the Funds reside (since 2017); Vice President and Assistant Treasurer of AMG Funds (2014-2017)
Deanna Marotz 1965	Chief Compliance Officer	Since 2015	Chief Compliance Officer of Keeley-Teton Advisors, LLC and Teton Advisors, Inc. (since 2017); Chief Compliance Officer of Keeley Asset Management Corp. (2015-2017); previously, Chief Compliance Officer of Invesco PowerShares Capital Management LLC (2008-2015)
Amanda N. Ward 1978	Assistant Secretary	Since 2018	Assistant Secretary of Other Registered Investment Companies within the Fund Complex in which the Funds reside (since 2016); Director of Bank of New York Mellon (since 2015); Associate Counsel and Regulatory Administration Manager of Atlantic Fund Services (2014- 2015)
Chandler M. Iorio 1986	Assistant Treasurer	Since 2018	Vice President of GAMCO Investors, Inc. (since 2019); Assistant Treasurer for Gabelli NextShares (2016-2019); Senior Administrator for Gabelli Funds, LLC (2013-2016)

^{*} The business address of the Directors and officers listed above is the address of the Company: 141 West Jackson Boulevard, Suite 2150, Chicago, Illinois 60604.

⁽¹⁾ Mr. Colavita's father, Anthony J. Colavita, serves as a director of several funds which are part of the Fund Complex.

Nicholas Galluccio is considered an interested person of the Company because of his position as President and Chief Executive Officer of Teton Advisors, Inc.

⁽³⁾ Kevin M. Keeley is considered an interested person of the Company because of his position as Executive Chairman and President of Keeley-Teton Advisors, LLC.

(4) Each Director serves an indefinite term until the election of a successor. Each officer serves an indefinite term, renewed annually, until the election of a successor.

EXPERIENCE OF DIRECTORS

The Board believes that the different perspectives, viewpoints, professional experience, education, and individual qualities of each Director contribute to the Board's diversity of experiences and bring a variety of complementary skills. It is the Directors' belief that this allows the Board, as a whole, to oversee the business of the Company in a manner consistent with the best interests of the Company's shareholders.

The following summary outlines each Director's experience, qualifications, attributes and skills that lead to the conclusion that each Director should serve as a Director of the Funds.

Laura D. Alter

Ms. Alter has more than 25 years of experience in the investment management industry. She previously served as the Senior Partner and Managing Director of Fixed Income Management for Harris Investments. Prior to her work with Harris, she was a senior portfolio manager for another investment management firm. Ms. Alter holds a BA from Northwestern University and an MBA from the University of Chicago. The Board concluded that Ms. Alter is suitable to act as director of the Funds because of her academic background and her extensive investment management experience.

Anthony S. Colavita

Mr. Colavita has been a practicing attorney with Anthony S. Colavita, P.C. since February 1988. Mr. Colavita serves on the boards of other funds in the Fund Complex. Mr. Colavita has been Town Supervisor of the Town of Eastchester, New York since January 2004, with responsibilities for the review, adoption and administration of a \$35 million budget. He has also served as a board member for multiple not-for-profit corporations and was previously counsel to the New York State Senate. Additionally, Mr. Colavita was an Eastchester Town Councilman from 1998 to 2003. He has been active on the boards of several community based programs. Mr. Colavita received his Bachelor of Arts from Colgate University and his Juris Doctor from Pace University School of Law. The Board concluded that Mr. Colavita is suitable to act as director of the Funds because of his professional background, board experience and extensive investment management experience.

James P. Conn

Mr. Conn serves on various board committees for other funds in the Fund Complex. He was a senior business executive of Transamerica Corp., an insurance holding company, for much of his career including service as Chief Investment Officer. Mr. Conn has been a director of several public companies in banking and other industries, and was lead director and/or chair of various committees. He received his Bachelor's degree in Business Administration from Santa Clara University. The Board concluded that Mr. Conn is suitable to act as director of the Funds because of his education, professional background and investment management experience.

Nicholas F. Galluccio

Mr. Galluccio is President and Chief Executive Officer of Teton Advisors, Inc., a multi-strategy asset management company, and is portfolio manager of the TETON Westwood SmallCap Equity Fund, TETON Westwood Mid-Cap Equity Fund and the Small-Mid Cap Value Fund. Mr. Galluccio joined Teton in 2008, after a 25-year career at Trust Company of the West ("TCW"), where he was Group Managing Director, U.S. Equities, and led the investment team for the TCW SmallCap Value Added and TCW MidCap Value Opportunities equity strategies. He was senior portfolio manager and co-managed both strategies since their inception. Prior to TCW, he was with Lehman Brothers Kuhn Loeb, where he was a security analyst specializing in the semiconductor industry. Prior to Lehman Brothers, Mr. Galluccio was a staff writer for Forbes magazine. Mr. Galluccio holds an M.B.A. from Columbia Business School and an M.A. from Columbia University and a B.A. from the University of Hartford. He serves on the University of Hartford Board of Regents and on the Executive Advisory Board of the Columbia Business School Program for Financial Studies. The Board concluded that Mr. Galluccio is suitable to act as a Director of the Funds because of his extensive investment management experience and his long-tenured positions in the asset management industry, particularly with Teton and TCW.

Kevin M. Keeley

Mr. Keeley is Executive Chairman and President of the Adviser. Mr. Keeley has more than 25 years of experience in management and marketing, having served as President of the Funds' predecessor adviser, Keeley Asset Management Corp. ("KAMCO"). He also serves as an officer and director of the Keeley Family Foundation. He spent 6 years as Qwest Communications International, Inc.

(CenturyLink) as a National Sales Manager. Mr. Keeley holds a B.A. from Indiana University. The Board concluded that Mr. Keeley is suitable to act as a Director of the Funds because of his extensive investment management experience and his long-tenured positions in the asset management industry, particularly with KAMCO.

Jerome J. Klingenberger

Mr. Klingenberger is a Certified Public Accountant. Mr. Klingenberger served as an auditor for a public accounting firm and his clients included publicly traded companies. Mr. Klingenberger holds a BBA in Accountancy from the University of Notre Dame and an MBA from the University of Chicago. Mr. Klingenberger has served as a member of the Board since 1999 and had previously served as its Independent Chair for the past decade. The Board concluded that Mr. Klingenberger is suitable to act as director of the Funds because of his academic experience, work experience and financial reporting experience.

Sean Lowry

In 2015, Mr. Lowry retired from his position as Executive Vice President for Pacor Mortgage, a mortgage business where he worked for 23 years. Mr. Lowry served as the managing director for trading operations at the Chicago Board Options Exchange ("CBOE") from 1985 to 1992. Mr. Lowry worked as an independent trader at the CBOE from 1975 to 1981 and served on several options-related committees. Mr. Lowry has served as a member of the Board since 1999. The Board concluded that Mr. Lowry is suitable to act as director of the Funds because of his understanding of the financial services industry and of his prior and current work experience.

Michael J. Melarkey

Mr. Melarkey, after more than 40 years' of experience as an attorney specializing in business, estate planning, and gaming regulatory work, retired from the active practice of law and is of counsel to the firm of McDonald Carano and Wilson in Reno, Nevada. Mr. Melarkey serves on board committees with respect to other funds in the Fund Complex. He is Chairman of the Board of Southwest Gas Corporation and serves on its Nominating, Corporate Governance, and Compensation Committees. Mr. Melarkey acts as a trustee and officer for several private charitable organizations including as a trustee of The Bretzlaff Foundation and Edwin L. Wiegand Trust. He is an officer of a private oil and gas company. Mr. Melarkey received his Bachelor's degree from the University of Nevada, Reno, Juris Doctor from the University of San Francisco School of Law and Masters of Law in Taxation from New York University School of Law. The Board concluded that Mr. Melarkey is suitable to act as director of the Funds because of his extensive business and investment management experience.

Kuni Nakamura

Mr. Nakamura is the President of Advanced Polymer, Inc., a chemical manufacturing company, and President of KEN Enterprises, Inc., a real estate company. He serves on board committees with respect to other funds in the Fund Complex. Mr. Nakamura was previously a board member of The LGL Group, Inc., a diversified manufacturing company. He serves on the Board of Trustees of Long Island University in Brookville, NY. He is involved in various capacities with The University of Pennsylvania and The Guiding Eyes for the Blind. Mr. Nakamura is a graduate of the University of Pennsylvania – The Wharton School with a Bachelor's degree in Economics and Multinational Management. The Board concluded that Mr. Nakamura is suitable to act as director of the Funds because of his academic experience, his work experience and his financial background.

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

As of December 31, 2019, the dollar range of equity securities owned beneficially by each Director in each Fund, as well as in the series of the Company in the aggregate, was as follows:

Name of Director	Small Cap Dividend Value Fund	Small-Mid Cap Value Fund	Mid Cap Dividend Value Fund	Aggregate Dollar Range of Equity Securities in All Registered Investment Companies Overseen by Director in Family of Investment Companies
Interested Directors				
Nicholas F. Galluccio	None	None	None	None
Kevin M. Keeley	Over \$100,000	Over \$100,000	Over \$100,000	Over \$100,000
Independent Directors				
Laura D. Alter	None	None	None	None
Anthony S. Colavita	None	None	None	None
James P. Conn	None	None	None	None
Jerome J. Klingenberger	Over \$100,000	Over \$100,000	Over \$100,000	Over \$100,000
Sean Lowry	None	None	None	None
Michael J. Melarkey	\$1-\$10,000	\$1-\$10,000	\$1-\$10,000	\$10,001-\$50,000
Kuni Nakamura	\$1-\$10,000	None	None	\$1-\$10,000

No director, officer, or employee of the Distributor, the Adviser or an affiliated company receives any compensation from the Funds for serving as an officer or Director of the Company. Each Director is paid an annual fee of \$10,000, \$2,000 per Board meeting attended in person and \$500 per Board meeting attended by telephone. Each member of the Audit Committee is paid \$1,000 per Audit Committee meeting attended in person and the Chairman of the Audit Committee receives an annual fee of \$25,000.

Regular Board meetings are held quarterly. Directors do not receive any pension or retirement plan benefits from the Company. The table below shows the compensation the Company paid to each Director for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019.

Name of Director	Aggregate Compensation from the Funds ⁽¹⁾		Compensation Accrued As Benefit from the Part of Fund		Total Compated Annual From the Complex tirement to Direction		
Independent Directors							
Laura D. Alter	\$	20,000	None	None	\$	20,000	(4)*
Anthony S. Colavita	\$	18,000	None	None	\$	140,288	(23)
James P. Conn	\$	18,000	None	None	\$	273,000	(26)
Jerome J. Klingenberger	\$	44,000	None	None	\$	44,000	(4)
Sean Lowry	\$	18,000	None	None	\$	18,000	(4)
Michael J. Melarkey	\$	16,000	None	None	\$	198,750	(26)
Kuni Nakamura	\$	20,000	None	None	\$	350,146	(38)
Interested Directors							
Nicholas F. Galluccio		None	None	None		None	
Kevin M. Keeley		None	None	None		None	

^{*} The parenthetical number represents the number of investment companies (including the Funds or portfolios thereof) from which such person receives compensation and which are considered part of the same "fund complex" as the Company because they have common or affiliated investment advisers.

Officers and Directors of the Funds do not pay sales loads on purchases of Funds shares. The Company believes the waiver of sales loads for those people is appropriate because the Distributor does not incur any costs related to selling shares to them, nor does it keep them advised of Funds' activity or performance. In addition, the Company believes that the waiver of sales load will encourage their ownership of the Funds' shares, which the Company believes is desirable.

[&]quot;Aggregate compensation from the Funds" includes fees and amounts deferred, if any, under the Deferred Compensation Plan for Independent Directors (the "Deferred Compensation Plan").

The "Fund Complex" includes all the U.S. registered investment companies that are considered part of the same fund complex as the Company because they have common or affiliated investment advisers.

INVESTMENT ADVISER

INVESTMENT ADVISER

The Funds' Adviser, Keeley-Teton Advisors, LLC, 141 W. Jackson Blvd., Suite 2150, Chicago, IL 60604, was organized as a Delaware limited liability company on October 14, 2016. Keeley-Teton is a wholly owned subsidiary of Teton Advisors, Inc., which is thereby deemed to "control" Keeley-Teton. Teton (previously known as Gabelli Advisers, Inc.), is a registered investment adviser and a Delaware corporation organized in 1994. As of December 31, 2019, the Adviser had approximately \$1.09 billion in assets under management.

Directly and through its third-party intermediaries, Teton offers funds and separately managed accounts to individuals and institutions. Teton provides advisory services to six mutual funds in the Teton Westwood fund complex. As of December 31, 2019, Teton had approximately \$1.2 billion in assets under management. Teton is located at One Corporate Center, Rye, New York 10580.

The investment advisory agreement between the Company and the Adviser on behalf of each Fund dated February 28, 2017 (the "Advisory Agreement"), as amended, must be approved annually by the Board of the Company or by vote of a majority of each Fund's outstanding voting securities (as defined in the 1940 Act). Each annual continuation of the Advisory Agreement also must be approved by the vote of a majority of the Company's directors who are not interested persons of the Company, as defined under the 1940 Act, cast in person at a meeting called for the purpose of voting on such approval.

Under the Advisory Agreement, the Adviser is responsible for administering each Fund's affairs and supervising the investment programs and must do so in accordance with applicable laws and regulations. The Adviser also furnishes the Board of Directors with periodic reports on each Fund's investment performance. The Advisory Agreement also provides that the Adviser shall not be liable to any Fund or its shareholders from, or as a consequence of, any act or omission of the Adviser, or of any of the directors, officers, employees or agents of the Adviser, in connection with or pursuant to the Advisory Agreement, except by willful misfeasance, bad faith or gross negligence on the part of the Adviser in the performance of its duties or by reason of reckless disregard by the Adviser of its obligations and duties under the Advisory Agreement.

ADVISORY FEES

For its services as investment adviser of each of Small Cap Dividend Value Fund and Small-Mid Cap Value Fund, the Adviser receives a monthly fee at the following annual rates:

Amount of average daily net assets	Fee Rate
Up to first \$350 million	1.00%
Between \$350 million and \$700 million	0.90%
More than \$700 million	0.80%

For its services as investment adviser of Mid Cap Dividend Value Fund, the Adviser receives a monthly fee at the following annual rates:

Amount of average daily net assets	Fee Rate
Up to first \$700 million	0.90%
More than \$700 million	0.80%

For the purpose of calculating the advisory fees, the net assets of the Funds will not be considered in the aggregate. For Small-Mid Cap Value Fund, the Adviser has contractually agreed to waive a portion of its management fee or reimburse the Funds to the extent that total ordinary operating expenses during the current fiscal year as a percentage of average net assets for each Fund exceed 1.39% for Class A Shares and 1.14% for Class I Shares. For Small Cap Dividend Value Fund, the Adviser has contractually agreed to waive a portion of its management fee or reimburse the Funds to the extent that total ordinary operating expenses during the current fiscal year as a percentage of average net assets for each Fund exceed 1.29% for Class A Shares and 1.04% for Class I Shares. For Mid Cap Dividend Value Fund, the Adviser has contractually agreed to waive a portion of its management fee or reimburse the Funds to the extent that total ordinary operating expenses during the current fiscal year as a percentage of average net assets for each Fund exceed 1.20% for Class A Shares and 0.95% for Class I Shares. However, the repayment of previously waived expenses is limited to amounts that do not cause the aggregate operating expenses of the Fund to exceed the current expense cap or the expense cap in place at the time the waiver was generated.

The waivers exclude expenses related to taxes, interest charges, dividend expenses incurred on securities that a Fund sells short, litigation expenses, other extraordinary expenses, and brokerage commissions and other charges relating to the purchase and sale of the Funds' portfolio securities. The waivers for all the Funds are in effect through February 28, 2021.

The Adviser became the investment adviser to the Funds on February 28, 2017; therefore, the Adviser did not earn any advisory fees from any Fund (and consequently, did not reimburse any fees to any Fund) during the period from October 1, 2016 through February 28, 2017, or during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016. The table below sets forth, for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2019, September 30, 2018 and the fiscal period from February 28, 2017 to September 30, 2017, the advisory fees accrued by the Fund:

	Fiscal Periods Ended September 30,					
Name of Fund	2019		2018		2017	
Small Cap Dividend Value Fund	\$ 1,926,247	\$	947,553	\$	581,033	
Small-Mid Cap Value Fund	\$ 960,890	\$	1,364,103	\$	781,611	
Mid Cap Dividend Value Fund	\$ 1,445,141	\$	1,317,397	\$	658,620	

For the fiscal periods indicated below, the following amounts of advisory fees pursuant to a previous advisory agreement were paid to KAMCO, the Company's predecessor adviser:

	Fis	Fiscal Periods Ended September 30,					
Name of Fund		2017		2016			
Small Cap Dividend Value Fund	\$	438,026	\$	1,076,211			
Small-Mid Cap Value Fund	\$	599,071	\$	1,778,933			
Mid Cap Dividend Value Fund	\$	404,228	\$	687,117			

Pursuant to an expense cap reimbursement agreement in place between the Adviser and the Funds, for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2019, September 30, 2018 and the fiscal period from February 28, 2017 to September 30, 2017, the Adviser reimbursed the following amounts to the Funds:

	 Fiscal Periods Ended September 30,				
Name of Fund	 2019		2018		2017
Small Cap Dividend Value Fund	\$ 347,914	\$	196,530	\$	115,221
Small-Mid Cap Value Fund	\$ 127,131	\$	113,365	\$	50,863
Mid Cap Dividend Value Fund	\$ 274,447	\$	241,278	\$	118,898

Pursuant to a previous expense cap reimbursement agreement in place between KAMCO and the Funds, for the fiscal periods ended September 30, 2017 and 2016, KAMCO reimbursed the following amounts to the Funds:

	Fiscal Period	Fiscal Periods Ended September 30,			
Name of Fund	2017	2017			
Small Cap Dividend Value Fund	\$ 87,61	4 \$	207,565		
Small-Mid Cap Value Fund	\$ 55,20	5 \$	134,054		
Mid Cap Dividend Value Fund	\$ 92,75	2 \$	160,020		

At a Board meeting held on August 20, 2019, the Board approved the continuation of the Advisory Agreement for each Fund with the Adviser. A discussion regarding the basis of the Board's approval of the Advisory Agreement, as well as the material factors considered by the Board, is available in the Funds' annual report to shareholders dated September 30, 2019.

PORTFOLIO MANAGERS

Brian R. Keeley is a Lead Portfolio Manager of Small-Mid Cap Value Fund. Mr. Keeley managed 45 other accounts, with assets of approximately \$136 million as of September 30, 2019. None of the accounts managed by Mr. Keeley provide for a performance-based fee

Kevin M. Chin is a Lead Portfolio Manager of Small-Mid Cap Value Fund. Mr. Chin managed 45 other accounts, with assets of approximately \$136 million as of September 30, 2019. None of the accounts managed by Mr. Chin provide for a performance-based fee

Thomas E. Browne, Jr. is the Lead Portfolio Manager of Small Cap Dividend Value Fund and Mid Cap Dividend Value Fund. Mr. Browne managed 21 other accounts, with assets of approximately \$62 million as of September 30, 2019. None of the accounts managed by Mr. Browne provide for a performance-based fee.

Brian P. Leonard is a Portfolio Manager of Small Cap Dividend Value Fund and Mid Cap Dividend Value Fund. Mr. Leonard managed 21 other accounts with assets of approximately \$62 million as of September 30, 2019. None of the accounts managed by Mr. Leonard provide for a performance-based fee.

Mr. Nicholas F. Galluccio is a Portfolio Manager of Small-Mid Cap Value Fund. Mr. Galluccio managed 16 other accounts, with assets of approximately \$176 million as of September 30, 2019. None of the accounts managed by Mr. Galluccio provided a performance-based fee.

Mr. Scott R. Butler is a Portfolio Manager of Small-Mid Cap Value Fund. Mr. Butler managed 16 other accounts, with assets of approximately \$176 million as of September 30, 2019. None of the accounts managed by Mr. Butler provided a performance-based fee

The Funds use the same investment strategy, but focus on different issuers:

- Small Cap Dividend Value Fund concentrates on small cap stocks (i) with attractive dividend yields that, in the opinion of the
 Adviser, are relatively stable or expected to grow, (ii) that pay a small dividend, but could grow their dividend over the next
 few years, and/or (iii) that pay no dividend, but may initiate a dividend or return cash to shareholders in other ways, such as a
 share repurchase program;
- Small-Mid Cap Value Fund concentrates on small cap and mid cap stocks; and
- Mid Cap Dividend Value Fund concentrates on mid cap stocks (i) with attractive dividend yields that, in the opinion of the Adviser, are relatively stable or expected to grow, (ii) that pay a small dividend, but could grow their dividend over the next few years, or (iii) that pay no dividend, but may initiate a dividend or return cash to shareholders in other ways, such as a share repurchase program.

A conflict will arise if a portfolio manager decides to sell a security that any of the Funds holds or if a portfolio manager decides to purchase a security for a Fund at the same time that such security is to be purchased or sold by another Fund, other pooled investment vehicles and other individual accounts and there is not sufficient trading volume to permit the fill of all of the orders at the same time without affecting the price. Such action could have an effect on the price of the securities and could potentially result in a Fund paying more (with respect to a purchase) or receiving less (with respect to a sale) than might otherwise be the case if only that Fund were purchasing or selling that security. Historically, when a Fund and any of those other accounts purchased or sold the same security on the same day, the Funds received the best price or the same price, and if possible, the transactions were averaged. If it is not possible to fill all of the orders for the same security for each of the Funds and the other accounts managed by the Adviser, the securities purchased or sold will be allocated among the purchasers or sellers proportionate to the number of shares that each requested to purchase or sell.

All portfolio managers receive a fixed annual salary and are eligible for a discretionary year-end bonus, as determined by the senior management team. The discretionary bonus compensation is tied to a multitude of factors, including a subjective review of each portfolio manager's performance and the overall performance of the Adviser. This subjective review includes each manager's performance versus their peer groups and benchmark indices.

As of December 31, 2019, Mr. Browne beneficially owned \$501,000-\$1 million in Small Cap Dividend Value Fund and \$501,000-\$1 million in Mid Cap Dividend Value Fund. Mr. Leonard beneficially owned \$100,001-\$500,000 in Small Cap Dividend Value Fund and \$100,001-\$500,000 in Mid Cap Dividend Value Fund. Mr. Keeley beneficially owned \$100,001-\$500,000 in Small Cap Dividend Value Fund and \$100,001-\$500,000 in Mid Cap Dividend Value Fund. Mr. Chin beneficially owned \$100,001-\$500,000 in Small-Mid Cap Dividend Value Fund, \$100,001-\$500,000 in Small-Mid Cap Value Fund and \$100,001-\$500,000 in Small-Mid Cap Value Fund and \$100,001-\$500,000 in Small Cap Dividend Value Fund. Mr. Butler beneficially owned under \$100,000 in Small Cap Dividend Value Fund, Mid Cap Dividend Value Fund. As of December 31, 2019 Mr. Galluccio did not beneficially own any shares of the Funds.

ADMINISTRATION AND FUND ACCOUNTING SERVICES

Gabelli Funds, One Corporate Center, Rye, NY 10580-1422, is the Funds' administrator and accountant and an affiliate of the Advisor. The Administrator assists in preparing and filing the Funds' federal and state tax returns and required tax filings (other than those required to be made by the Funds' custodian or transfer agent); participates in the preparation of the Funds' registration statement, proxy statements and reports; prepares state securities law compliance filings; oversees the Funds' fidelity insurance relationships; compiles data for and prepares notices to the SEC; prepares the Funds' annual and semi-annual reports to the SEC and current shareholders; monitors the Funds' expense accounts, the Funds' status as regulated investment companies under Subchapter M of the Code, the Funds' arrangements with respect to services provided pursuant to the Funds' Distribution Plan, compliance with each Funds' investment policies and restrictions; and generally assists in the Funds' administrative operations.

The Administrator furnishes office space and all necessary office facilities, equipment, supplies and clerical and executive personnel for performing the services required to be performed by it under the administration agreement.

The Administrator, at its own expense and without reimbursement from the Funds has entered into a sub-administration agreement with BNY Mellon Investment Servicing (US) Inc., which is located at 301 Bellevue Parkway, Wilmington, DE 19809-3705. Under the sub-administration agreement, the Sub-Administrator generally provides all administrative services that may be required for the ongoing operation of the Funds in a manner consistent with the requirements of 1940 Act. The Sub-Administrator's fee is paid by the Administrator and will result in no additional expenses to the Funds.

The services of the Administrator and Sub-Administrator also include: maintaining portfolio records; obtaining prices for portfolio positions; determining gains/losses on security sales; calculating expense accrual amounts; recording payments for each Fund's expenses; accounting for fund share purchases, sales, exchanges, transfers, dividend reinvestments and other fund share activity; maintaining a general ledger for the Funds; determining the NAV of each Fund; calculating NAV per share and maintaining tax accounting records for the investment portfolio.

CUSTODIAN, TRANSFER AGENT AND DIVIDEND DISBURSING AGENT

CUSTODIAN

State Street Bank and Trust Company, 1 Iron Street, Boston, MA 02110-1641, is the custodian for the Funds. The Custodian is responsible for: holding all securities and cash of the Funds; receiving and paying for securities purchased; delivering against payment for securities sold; receiving and collecting income from investments; making all payments covering expenses of the Funds; and performing other administrative duties, all as directed by authorized persons of the Funds. The Custodian does not exercise any supervisory function in such matters as purchase and sale of portfolio securities, payment of dividends, or payment of expenses of the Funds. The Funds have authorized the Custodian to deposit certain portfolio securities in central depository systems as permitted under federal law. The Funds may invest in obligations of the Custodian and may purchase or sell securities from or to the Custodian.

TRANSFER AGENT AND DIVIDEND DISBURSING AGENT

DST Asset Manager Solutions, Inc., which is located at 2000 Crown Colony Drive, Quincy, MA 02169-0953, acts as the transfer agent and dividend disbursing agent for the Funds. The Transfer Agent's services include printing, postage, forms, stationary, record retention, mailing, insertion, programming, labels, shareholder lists and proxy expenses. These fees and reimbursable expenses may be changed from time to time subject to mutual written agreement between the Transfer Agent and the Funds and with the approval of the Board of Directors.

The Transfer Agent receives orders for the purchase of shares; processes purchase orders and issues the appropriate number of uncertificated shares; processes redemption requests; pays money in accordance with the instructions of redeeming shareholders; transfers shares; processes exchanges between funds within the same fund complex; transmits payments for dividends and distributions; maintains current shareholder records; files U.S. Treasury Department Form 1099s and other appropriate information required with respect to dividends and distributions for all shareholders; provides shareholder account information upon request; mails confirmations and statements of account to shareholders for all purchases, redemptions and other confirmable transactions as agreed upon with each Fund and monitors the total number of shares sold in each state.

NET ASSET VALUE

For purposes of computing the NAV of a share of a Fund, securities listed on an exchange or quoted on a national market system are valued at the last sales price at the time of valuation or, if there are no reported sales on that day, at the most recent bid quotations. Securities traded on only the OTC markets are valued on the basis of closing OTC bid prices when there is no last sale price available. Securities for which quotations are not available and any other assets are valued at a fair value as determined in good faith by the Board of Directors. Money market instruments having a maturity of 60 days or less from the valuation date are valued on an amortized cost basis.

A Fund's NAV will not be determined on any day on which the NYSE is not open for trading. The NYSE is regularly closed on Saturdays and Sundays and on New Year's Day, the third Monday in January, the third Monday in February, Good Friday, the last Monday in May, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day. If one of these holidays falls on a Saturday or Sunday, the NYSE will be closed on the preceding Friday or the following Monday, respectively.

The Company has elected to be governed by Rule 18f-1 under the 1940 Act. As a result of this election, the Funds must redeem shares solely in cash up to the lesser of \$250,000 or 1% of the NAV of the Fund during any 90-day period for any one shareholder. Redemptions in excess of those above amounts normally will be paid in cash but may be paid wholly or partly by a distribution of Fund portfolio securities.

Investments by corporations must include a certified copy of corporate resolutions indicating which officers are authorized to act on behalf of the account. Investments by trustees must include a copy of the title and signature page of the trust agreement and pages indicating who is authorized to act.

PURCHASES AND REDEMPTION OF SHARES

For information on purchase and redemption of shares, see "How to Buy, Sell and Exchange Shares" in the Funds' Prospectus. Each Fund may suspend the right of redemption of shares of the Fund for any period: (i) during which the NYSE is closed other than customary weekend and holiday closing or during which trading on the NYSE is restricted; (ii) when the SEC determines that a state of emergency exists that may make payment or transfer not reasonably practicable; (iii) as the SEC may, by order, permit for the protection of the security holder of the Fund; or (iv) at any other time when the Fund may, under applicable laws and regulations, suspend payment on the redemption of its shares.

SALES AT NET ASSET VALUE

CLASS A SHARES

Only certain sales of Class A Shares are made at NAV, meaning they are not subject to a sales charge. This is because certain investor and intermediary transactions involve little or no expense. The investors who may be able to purchase Class A Shares without paying an initial sales charge generally are as follows:

- Group employer-sponsored retirement and deferred compensation plans and group employer sponsored employee benefit plans (including health savings accounts) and trusts used to fund those plans. Traditional IRAs, Roth IRAs, SEPs, SARSEPs, SIMPLE IRAs, KEOGH plans, individual 401(k) plans and individual 403(b) plans, as well as shares held in commission- based broker-dealer accounts, do not qualify under this waiver.
- Non-dealer assisted (or assisted only by the Distributor) purchases by bank or trust company in a single account where such bank or trust company is named as the trustee.
- Non-dealer assisted (or assisted only by the Distributor) purchase by banks, insurance companies, insurance company separate accounts and other institutional purchasers.
- A registered investment adviser purchasing shares on behalf of a client or on his or her own behalf through an intermediary service institution offering a separate and established program for registered investment advisers and notifying the Funds and Distributor of such arrangement.
- Fee-based account clients of registered investment advisers.
- Sales through a broker-dealer to its customer under an arrangement in which the customer pays the broker-dealer a fee
 based on the value of the account, in lieu of transaction based brokerage.
- Sales to broker-dealers who conduct their business with their customers principally through the Internet and do not have registered representatives who actively solicit those customers to purchase securities, including shares of the Funds.

- Any current or retired Officer, Director or employee of the Funds, Adviser, Distributor or any affiliated company thereof. This shall also apply to their immediate family members.
- Registered representatives, their spouses and minor children, and employees of dealer firms that have a distribution agreement with the Distributor.
- Employees of the Administrator and counsel to the Funds.
- Consultants and their employees who provide consulting services to the Adviser of the Funds.
- Reinvestment of dividends and distributions received from a Fund by a current shareholder.
- Shares exchanged in accordance with the Funds' exchange privilege.

The minimum initial investment for Class A Shares is \$2,500, and the minimum for additional investments is \$50. Each minimum is subject to change at any time. The Distributor may waive the sales charge in certain other limited instances where it perceives there to be little or no expense associated with the share purchase. Please check with the Distributor whether you qualify for investment in Class A Shares at NAV.

CLASS I SHARES

All sales of Class I Shares are made at NAV, meaning they are not subject to a sales charge. In addition, Class I Shares are not subject to the 12b-1 Plan, which results in a lower overall expense ratio than Class A Shares. The minimum initial investment for Class I Shares is \$1 million, and the minimum for additional investments is \$10,000. Each minimum is subject to change at any time. The Distributor may waive the minimum initial investment to establish certain Class I Share accounts and may waive the minimum amount for additional investments to certain Class I Share accounts.

Institutional Class Shares may also be available on certain brokerage platforms. An investor transacting in Institutional Class Shares through a broker acting as an agent for the investor may be required to pay a commission and/or other forms of compensation to the broker.

Please check with the Distributor to confirm whether you qualify for investment in Class I Shares.

EXCHANGE PRIVILEGE

Investors may exchange some or all of their Fund shares between identically registered accounts of the Funds or other funds managed by the Adviser's affiliates. The minimum exchange amount between is \$250. For exchange purposes, you may exchange shares of any fund managed by the Adviser or its affiliates for shares of another such fund; however, you may only exchange between share classes if you meet the investment minimum for the share class into which you are exchanging. An investor is limited to four exchanges in each 12-month period. Investors who are interested in exercising the exchange privilege should first contact the Funds to obtain instructions and any necessary forms.

The exchange privilege will not be available if the proceeds from a redemption of shares of the Funds are paid directly to the investor or at his or her discretion to any persons other than the Funds. The exchange privilege may be terminated by any Fund at any time.

For federal income tax purposes, a redemption of shares pursuant to the exchange privilege will be treated in the same manner as a sale or exchange and will result in a capital gain if the proceeds received exceed the investor's tax-cost basis of the shares redeemed. If a capital loss is realized, the deductibility of such loss may be subject to limitations under the tax law. Such a redemption also may be taxed under state and local tax laws, which may differ from the Code.

TAXATION

Set forth below is a discussion of certain federal income tax considerations concerning the Funds and the purchase, ownership and disposition of Fund shares. This discussion does not purport to be complete or to deal with all aspects of federal income taxation that may be relevant to shareholders in light of their particular circumstances. Unless otherwise noted, this discussion assumes you are a shareholder who is a U.S. person, as defined for federal tax purposes, and that you hold your shares as capital assets. This discussion is based upon present provisions of the Code, the regulations promulgated thereunder, and judicial and administrative authorities existing as of the date of this SAI, all of which are subject to change, which change may be retroactive. Prospective investors should consult their own tax advisors with regard to the federal tax consequences of the purchase, ownership, or disposition of Fund shares, as well as the tax consequences arising under the laws of any state, non-U.S. country, or other taxing jurisdiction.

TAXATION OF A FUND

Each Fund has elected to be, and intends to continue to qualify annually to be treated as, a regulated investment company under Subchapter M of the Code.

To qualify for the favorable federal income tax treatment accorded to regulated investment companies, a Fund must, among other things:

- (a) Income Requirement derive in each taxable year at least 90% of its gross income from dividends, interest, payments with respect to securities loans, gains from the sale or other disposition of stock, securities or foreign currencies, other income derived with respect to its business of investing in stock, securities or such currencies, or net income derived from interests in "qualified publicly traded partnerships," as defined in the Code;
- (b) Diversification Requirement diversify its holdings so that, at the end of each quarter of its taxable year, (i) at least 50% of the value of the Fund's assets is represented by cash and cash items (including receivables), U.S. Government securities, the securities of other regulated investment companies and other securities, with such other securities of any one issuer limited to an amount not greater than 5% of the value of the Fund's total assets and not greater than 10% of the outstanding voting securities of such issuer, and (ii) not more than 25% of the value of its total assets is invested in the securities (other than U.S. Government securities or the securities of other regulated investment companies) of a single issuer, or two or more issuers (other than the securities of other regulated investment companies) that the Fund controls (by owning 20% or more of the outstanding voting securities of such issuer) and are engaged in the same, similar or related trades or businesses, or one or more qualified publicly traded partnerships; and
- (c) Distribution Requirement distribute at least the sum of 90% of its investment company taxable income (as that term is defined in the Code, but without regard to the deduction for dividends paid) and 90% of its net tax-exempt interest income, if any, in each year.

As a regulated investment company, a Fund will not be subject to federal income tax on its investment company taxable income (generally consisting of net investment income, the excess of net short-term capital gain over net long-term capital loss, and net gains and losses from certain foreign currency transactions, if any, determined without regard to any deduction for dividends paid) and net capital gain (the excess of net long-term capital gain over net short-term capital loss), if any, that it distributes to its shareholders. If a Fund retains any net capital gain or any investment company taxable income, it will be subject to tax at regular corporate rates on the retained amount, except as described in the following paragraph.

If a Fund failed to qualify for treatment as a regulated investment company for any taxable year, then for federal income tax purposes it would be taxed as an ordinary corporation on the full amount of its taxable income for that year (even if such income were distributed to its shareholders). In addition, for those purposes all those distributions, including distributions of net capital gain, would be taxable to its shareholders as ordinary income to the extent of the Fund's current accumulated earnings and profits. Such distributions may be treated as "qualified dividend income" to non-corporate shareholders (and thus subject to federal income tax at the 20% federal rate for net capital gain, as described in the Prospectus). In the case of corporate shareholders that meet certain holding period and other requirements regarding their Fund shares, all or part of those dividends would be eligible for the dividends-received deduction. Furthermore, the Fund could be required to recognize unrealized gains, pay substantial taxes and interest, and make substantial distributions before requalifying for treatment as a regulated investment company.

If a Fund retains any net capital gain, it may report the retained amount as undistributed net capital gain in a notice to its shareholders who, if subject to federal income tax, (i) will be required to include in gross income for federal income tax purposes, as long-term capital gain, their share of such undistributed amount and (ii) will be entitled to credit their proportionate shares of the tax paid by the Fund on such undistributed amount against their federal income tax liabilities, if any, and to claim refunds to the extent the credit exceeds such liabilities. For those purposes, the tax basis in shares owned by a shareholder will be increased by an amount equal to the difference between the amount of undistributed net capital gain so included and the tax deemed paid by the shareholder under clause (ii) of the preceding sentence. Each Fund intends to distribute to its shareholders, at least annually, substantially all of its investment company taxable income and net capital gain.

Dividends and capital gain distributions are generally taxable to shareholders when received. However, a distribution will be treated as paid on December 31 if it is declared by a Fund in October, November or December with a record date in such a month and paid by the Fund during January of the following year. Such distributions thus will be taxable to shareholders in the calendar year in which they are declared, rather than the calendar year in which they are received.

Amounts not distributed on a timely basis in accordance with a calendar year distribution requirement are subject to a nondeductible 4% federal excise tax at the Fund level. To prevent imposition of the excise tax, a Fund must distribute during each calendar year an amount at least equal to the sum of (1) 98% of its ordinary income (not taking into account any capital gains or losses) for the calendar year, (2) 98.2% of its capital gains in excess of its capital losses (adjusted for certain ordinary losses) for the one-year period ending

October 31 of the calendar year (unless an election is made by the Fund with a November or December year end to use the Fund's fiscal year), and (3) any ordinary income and net capital gains for previous years that were not distributed during those years and on which the Fund paid no federal income tax. To prevent application of the excise tax, each Fund intends to make timely distributions in accordance with the foregoing.

DISTRIBUTIONS

Dividends paid out of a Fund's investment company taxable income generally will be taxable to a shareholder as ordinary income to the extent of the Fund's current and accumulated earnings and profits, whether paid in cash or reinvested in additional shares. Distributions derived from the excess of net short-term capital gain over net long-term capital loss will be taxable to you as ordinary income. Distributions paid from the excess of net long-term capital gain over net short-term capital loss will be taxable to you as long-term capital gain, regardless of how long you have held your shares in the Fund. Distributions by a Fund that are not paid from earnings and profits will be treated as a return of capital to the extent of (and in reduction of) the shareholder's tax basis in his shares; any distributions in excess of a shareholder's tax basis in his shares will be treated as gain from the sale of his shares.

Part of each Fund's dividend distributions may constitute qualified dividend income and/or be eligible for corporate dividends-received deduction, which are eligible for taxation at a reduced rate. A dividend a Fund receives will constitute qualified dividend income to it (and thus to its shareholders when distributed to them) if it holds the stock associated with the dividend for more than 60 days during the 121-day period beginning 60 days before the ex-dividend date (or more than 90 days during the 181-day period beginning 90 days before the ex-dividend date, in the case of certain preferred stocks). In addition, the Fund cannot be obligated to make payments (pursuant to a short sale or otherwise) with respect to substantially similar or related property.

Shareholders receiving distributions in the form of additional shares, rather than cash, generally will have a basis in each such share equal to the fair market value of a share of the Fund on the investment date.

Shareholders will be notified annually as to the federal tax status of distributions, and shareholders receiving distributions in the form of additional shares will receive a report as to the NAV of those shares. A Fund may make taxable distributions even during a period in which the Fund's share price has declined. No assurance can be made that a Fund will make sufficient distributions to avoid all taxes in every period.

For a description of the Funds' distribution policies, see "Distributions and Taxes" in the Funds' Prospectus.

SALE OR EXCHANGE OF FUND SHARES

Upon the sale or other disposition of shares of a Fund that a shareholder holds as a capital asset, such a shareholder may realize a capital gain or loss that will be long-term or short-term, depending upon the shareholder's holding period for the shares. Generally, a shareholder's gain or loss will be a long-term gain or loss if the shares have been held for more than one year. The maximum federal long-term capital gain tax rate for individual shareholders is 20%, as described in the Funds' prospectus.

Any loss realized on a sale or exchange will be disallowed to the extent that shares disposed of are replaced (including through reinvestment of dividends) within a period of 61 days beginning 30 days before and ending 30 days after disposition of the original shares. In such a case, the basis of the shares acquired will be adjusted to reflect the disallowed loss. In addition, any loss realized by a shareholder on a disposition of Fund shares held by the shareholder for six months or less will be treated as a long-term capital loss to the extent of any distributions of net capital gain received or deemed received by the shareholder with respect to such shares. Capital losses are subject to other limitations on deductibility. You should consult your tax advisor.

NATURE OF FUNDS' INVESTMENTS

Certain of the Funds' investment practices are subject to special and complex federal income tax provisions that may, among other things, (i) disallow, suspend or otherwise limit the allowance of certain losses or deductions, including the dividends-received deduction, (ii) convert lower taxed long-term capital gain or qualified dividend income into higher taxed short-term capital gain or ordinary income, (iii) convert an ordinary loss or a deduction into a capital loss (the deductibility of which is more limited), (iv) cause the Fund to recognize income or gain without a corresponding receipt of cash, (v) adversely affect the time as to when a purchase or sale of stock or securities is deemed to occur, (vi) adversely alter the characterization of certain complex financial transactions, or (vii) produce income that will not be qualifying income to qualify as a regulated investment company under the Code.

Each Fund may make certain tax elections in order to mitigate the effect of these provisions. The Funds' investment program and the tax treatment of Fund distributions may be affected by Internal Revenue Service interpretations of the Code and future changes in tax laws and regulations.

NON-U.S. TAXES

Since the Funds may invest in non-U.S. securities, their income from such securities may be subject to non-U.S. taxes. Tax conventions between certain countries and the United States may reduce or eliminate such taxes. If a Fund pays nonrefundable taxes to foreign governments during the year, the taxes will reduce the Fund's dividends but will still be included in your taxable income. However, if a Fund qualifies for, and makes, a special election, you may be able to claim an offsetting credit or deduction on your tax return for your share of foreign taxes paid by a Fund.

PASSIVE FOREIGN INVESTMENT COMPANY

If a Fund purchases shares in a "passive foreign investment company" (a "PFIC"), the Fund will be subject to U.S. federal income tax on a portion of any "excess distribution" or gain from the disposition of such shares even if such income is distributed as a taxable dividend by the Fund to its shareholders. Additional charges in the nature of interest may be imposed on the Fund in respect of deferred taxes arising from such distributions or gains.

If a Fund were to invest in a PFIC and elected to treat the PFIC as a "qualified electing fund" under the Code (a "QEF"), in lieu of the foregoing requirements, the Fund would be required to include in income each taxable year a portion of the ordinary earnings and net capital gain of the QEF, even if not distributed to the Fund. Alternatively, the Fund can elect to mark-to-market at the end of each taxable year its shares in a PFIC; in this case, the Fund annually would recognize as ordinary income any increase in the value of such shares, and as ordinary loss any decrease in such value to the extent it did not exceed prior increases included in income. Under either election, the Fund might be required to recognize in a taxable year income in excess of its distributions from PFICs and its proceeds from dispositions of PFIC stock during that year, and such income would nevertheless be subject to the distribution requirement applicable to regulated investment companies and would be taken into account for purposes of the nondeductible 4% excise tax (described above). Dividends paid by a Fund attributable to income and gains from PFICs will not be treated as qualified dividend income.

CURRENCY FLUCTUATIONS

Under Section 988 of the Code, gains or losses attributable to fluctuations in exchange rates between the time a Fund accrues income or receivables or expenses or other liabilities denominated in a non-U.S. currency and the time the Fund actually collects such income or receivables or pays such liabilities are generally treated as ordinary income or loss. Similarly, gains or losses on non-U.S. currency forward contracts and the disposition of debt securities denominated in non-U.S. currency, to the extent attributable to fluctuations in exchange rates between the acquisition and disposition dates, also are treated as ordinary income or loss.

RECOGNITION OF INCOME IN THE ABSENCE OF CASH

Investments by a Fund in zero coupon or other discount securities will result in income to the Fund equal to a portion of the excess of the face value of the securities over their issue price (the "original issue discount") each year that the securities are held, even though the Fund receives no cash interest payments. In other circumstances, whether pursuant to the terms of a security or as a result of other factors outside the control of the Fund, the Fund may recognize income without receiving a commensurate amount of cash. Such income is included in determining the amount of income that the Fund must distribute to maintain its status as a regulated investment company and to avoid the payment of federal income tax and the nondeductible 4% excise tax. Because such income may not be matched by a corresponding cash distribution to the Fund, the Fund may be required to borrow money or dispose of other securities to be able to make distributions to its shareholders.

The Code imposes constructive sale treatment for federal income tax purposes on certain hedging strategies with respect to appreciated financial positions. Under these rules, taxpayers will recognize gain, but not loss, with respect to securities if they enter into short sales or "offsetting notional principal contracts" (as defined by the Code) with respect to, or futures or forward contracts to deliver, the same or substantially identical property, or if they enter into such transactions and then acquire the same or substantially identical property. The Secretary of the Treasury is authorized to promulgate regulations that will treat as constructive sales certain transactions that have substantially the same effect as these transactions.

INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES OF UNCERTAIN TAX CHARACTER

The Funds may invest in preferred securities, convertible securities or other securities the U.S. federal income tax treatment of which is uncertain or subject to re-characterization by the Internal Revenue Service. To the extent the tax treatment of such securities or income differs from the tax treatment expected by a Fund, it could affect the timing or character of income recognized by the Fund, requiring the Fund to purchase or sell securities, or otherwise change its portfolio, in order to comply with the tax rules applicable to regulated investment companies under the Code.

BACKUP WITHHOLDING

A Fund may be required to withhold federal income tax from all taxable distributions and redemption proceeds payable to shareholders who fail to provide the Fund with their correct taxpayer identification number or to make required certifications, or who have been notified by the Internal Revenue Service that they are subject to backup withholding. The federal backup withholding percentage is currently 24%. Corporate shareholders and certain other shareholders specified in the Code generally are exempt from such backup withholding. This withholding is not an additional tax. Any amounts withheld may be credited against the shareholder's U.S. federal income tax liability, provided the required information is timely furnished to the Internal Revenue Service.

REGULATIONS ON "REPORTABLE TRANSACTIONS"

Under Treasury regulations, if a shareholder recognizes a loss of \$2 million or more for an individual shareholder or \$10 million or more for a corporate shareholder in any single taxable year (or a greater loss over a combination of years), the shareholder must file with the Internal Revenue Service a disclosure statement on Form 8886. Direct shareholders of portfolio securities are in many cases excepted from this reporting requirement, but under current guidance, shareholders of a regulated investment company are not excepted. Future guidance may extend the current exception from this reporting requirement to shareholders of most or all regulated investment companies. The fact that a loss is reportable under these regulations does not affect the legal determination of whether the taxpayer's treatment of the loss is proper. Shareholders should consult their tax advisors to determine the applicability of these regulations in light of their individual circumstances.

BASIS REPORTING

The Funds are required to report to the Internal Revenue Service and furnish to Fund shareholders detailed basis and holding period information for Fund shares acquired on or after January 1, 2012 ("covered shares"). These requirements do not apply to investments through a tax-deferred arrangement, such as a 401(k) plan or an individual retirement plan. If a shareholder redeems covered shares, the Fund will report the account basis in such covered shares to the Internal Revenue Service and to the shareholder on Form 1099-B along with the gross proceeds received on the redemption, the gain or loss realized on such redemption and the holding period of the redeemed shares.

Each Fund's default basis calculation methodology will be the average cost of all covered shares. Shareholders will be able to elect to use another Internal Revenue Service-accepted basis calculation method via the Keeley Funds website, www.keeleyfunds.com, or by notifying the Funds' transfer agent in writing. The elected basis (or the default basis) method for each sale of Fund shares may not be changed following the settlement date of each such sale of Fund shares.

Shareholders hold Fund shares through a broker-dealer (or another nominee) should contact that broker-dealer (nominee) with respect to the reporting of basis and available elections for their account.

Shareholders are encouraged to consult their tax advisors regarding the application of the new cost basis reporting rules and, in particular, which cost basis calculation method they should elect.

NON-U.S. INVESTORS

Fund shares generally are not sold outside the United States. However, non-U.S. investors (shareholders who, as to the U.S., are nonresident alien individuals, foreign trusts or estates, foreign corporations, or foreign partnerships) may be subject to U.S. withholding and estate tax and are subject to special U.S. tax certification requirements. Non-U.S. investors should consult their tax advisors about the applicability of U.S. tax withholding and the use of the appropriate forms to certify their status.

FOREIGN ACCOUNT TAX COMPLIANCE ACT ("FATCA")

Under FATCA, foreign financial institutions ("FFIs") and non-financial foreign entities ("NFFEs") that are Fund shareholders may be subject to a generally nonrefundable 30% withholding tax on certain income dividends a Fund pays. Under proposed Treasury regulations, which may be relied upon by taxpayers until final Treasury regulations are published, there is no FATCA withholding on gross proceeds from the sale or disposition of Fund shares or on certain capital gains distributions. FATCA withholding tax generally can be avoided (a) by FFIs if they report certain information regarding direct and indirect ownership of financial accounts that U.S. persons hold with the FFI, and (b) by NFFEs that certify their status as such and, in certain circumstances, information regarding substantial U.S. owners. A Fund may disclose the information that it receives from its shareholders to the IRS, non-U.S. taxing authorities or other parties as necessary to comply with FATCA or similar laws. You should consult your tax advisor as to the impact of these requirements on your investment in a Fund.

An individual is required to pay a 3.8% federal tax on the lesser of (1) the individual's "net investment income," which generally included dividends and capital gain distributions a Fund pays and net gains realized on redemptions and exchanges of Fund shares, or (2) the excess of the individual's "modified adjusted gross income" over a threshold amount (\$250,000 for married individuals filing jointly and \$200,000 for single taxpayers) This tax is in addition to any other taxes due on income. A similar tax applies to estates and trusts. Shareholders should consult their own tax advisors regarding the effect, if any, this tax may have on their investment in Fund shares.

Fund shareholders may be subject to state, local and non-U.S. taxes on their Fund distributions. Shareholders are advised to consult their own tax advisors with respect to the particular tax consequences to them of an investment in the Funds.

DISTRIBUTION OF SHARES

The Distributor, G.distributors, LLC, is a Delaware limited liability company, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of GAMCO Investors, Inc. Its principal offices are located at One Corporate Center, Rye, New York 10580-1422. G.distributors, LLC, acts as the principal underwriter for the Funds pursuant to a Distribution Agreement between the Company and the Distributor. The Distributor is a registered broker-dealer under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and a member of FINRA.

The Distribution Agreement provides that the Distributor, as an agent of the Funds, will use its best efforts to distribute the shares of the Funds on a continuous basis and will receive commissions on such sales as described in the Prospectus under "How Shares are Priced." Expenses normally attributable to the sale of Fund shares which are not paid by the Funds are paid by the Distributor. The Distributor may receive brokerage commissions for executing portfolio transactions for a Fund. The Distributor may enter into selling agreements with registered broker-dealers to assist in the distribution effort, pursuant to which the Distributor may re-allow the sales charge to such broker-dealers. Any compensation to these other entities will be paid by the Distributor from the proceeds of the sales charge. The Distributor also may compensate these entities out of the distribution fees received from each Fund.

The Distributor became the distributor of the Funds in February 2017; therefore, during the fiscal period from October 1, 2016 to February 28, 2017, and the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016, it did not receive any commissions or any other compensation from the Funds, nor did it receive any sales charges from the purchases of Class A shares of the Funds during that time. Set forth below is the amount of underwriting commissions that the Distributor received for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2019, September 30, 2018 and the fiscal period from February 28, 2017 to September 30, 2017 pursuant to the Company's underwriting agreement.

	Fre	ont End	Redemption	
Year	Sale	Charges	Charges	Total
Year 2019	\$	18,589	None	\$18,589
2018	\$	18,897	None	\$18,897
2017	\$	18,660	None	\$18,660

Set forth below is the amount of underwriting commissions that the Company's predecessor distributor, Keeley Investment Corp. ("KIC"), received for the fiscal period from October 1, 2016 to September 30, 2017 pursuant to the Company's previous underwriting agreement.

	Front	End	Redemption	
Year	Sales C	harges	Charges	Total
2017	\$ 2	4.313	None	\$24,313

DISTRIBUTION AND SHAREHOLDER SERVICING ARRANGEMENTS

DISTRIBUTION PLAN

For Class A Shares, the Company has adopted a Plan of Distribution pursuant to Rule 12b-1 of the 1940 Act (the "Plan"). The Plan was adopted anticipating that the Funds will benefit from the Plan through increased future sales of shares of the Funds, eventually reducing the Funds' expense ratios and providing an asset size that will allow the Adviser greater flexibility in management. For any Fund, the Plan may be terminated at any time by a vote of the Directors who are not interested persons of the Company and who have no direct or indirect financial interest in the Plan or any agreement related thereto (the "Rule 12b-1 Directors") or by a vote of a majority of the outstanding shares of that Fund. Any change in the Plan that would materially increase the distribution expenses of a Fund provided for in the Plan requires the approval of the shareholders and the Board of Directors, including the Rule 12b-1 Directors.

Pursuant to the Plan, each Fund will pay directly the Distributor a 12b-1 distribution fee equal to the amounts specified in the Funds' Prospectus. These fees will be used to pay for costs and expenses incurred in connection with distributing and marketing shares of each Fund. Such activities typically include advertising; compensation for sales and marketing activities of the Distributor and other banks, broker-dealers, and service providers; shareholder account servicing; production and dissemination of prospectuses and sales and marketing materials; and capital or other expenses of associated equipment, rent, salaries, bonuses, interest, and other overhead. To the extent any activity is one which the Funds may finance without a distribution plan, the Funds may also make payments to finance such activity outside of the Plan and not be subject to its limitations.

While the Plan is in effect, the selection and nomination of Directors who are not interested persons of the Company will be committed to the discretion of the Directors of the Company who are not interested persons of a Fund. The Board of Directors must review the amount and purposes of expenditures pursuant to the Plan quarterly as reported to it by the Distributor. The Plan will continue in effect for as long as its continuance is specifically approved at least annually by a majority of the Directors, including the Rule 12b-1 Directors.

The table below sets forth the amounts paid under the Plan on Class A shares and the amount thereof retained by the Distributor for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019.

	Aı	nount Paid	Am	nount Retained by
Fund	U	nder Plan		Distributor
Small Cap Dividend Value Fund	\$	226,362	\$	0
Small-Mid Cap Value Fund	\$	71,119	\$	0
Mid Cap Dividend Value Fund	\$	53,981	\$	0

Amounts paid under the Plan (which may not exceed a maximum monthly percentage of 1/12 of 0.25% (0.25% per annum) of a Fund's average daily net assets) are paid to the Distributor in connection with its services as distributor. Payments, if any, are accrued daily and are paid monthly and are based on reports submitted by the Distributor to each Fund which sets forth all amounts expended by the Distributor pursuant to the Plan. Under no circumstances will a Fund pay a fee, pursuant to the Plan, the effect of which would be to exceed the FINRA limitations on asset-based compensation described below.

FINRA has rules that may limit the extent to which a Fund may make payments under the Plan. Although FINRA's rules do not apply to the Funds directly, the rules apply to members of FINRA such as the Distributor and prohibit them from offering or selling shares of a Fund if the sale charges (including 12b-1 fees) imposed on such shares exceed FINRA's limitations.

The rules impose two related limits on 12b-1 fees paid by investors: an annual limit and a rolling cap. The annual limit is 0.75% of assets (with an additional 0.25% permitted as a service fee). The rolling cap on the total of all sales charges (including front end charges, contingent deferred sales charges and asset-based charges such as 12b-1 payments) is 6.25% of new sales (excluding sales resulting from the reinvestment of dividends and distributions) for funds that charge a service fee and 7.25% of new sales for funds that do not assess a service fee.

Whether the rolling applicable maximum sales charge has been exceeded requires periodic calculations of a Fund's so-called "remaining amount." The remaining amount is the amount to which a Fund's total sales charges are subject for purposes of ensuring compliance with the FINRA limits. The Fund's remaining amount is generally calculated by multiplying the Fund's new sales by its appropriate FINRA maximum sales charge (6.25% or 7.25%). From this amount is subtracted the Fund's sales charges on the new sales and the 12b-1 payments accrued or paid over the period. The Fund's remaining amount increases with new sales of the Fund (because the Fund's front-end sales charge is less than the applicable FINRA maximum) and decreases as the 12b-1 charges are accrued. The FINRA rules permit the remaining amount to be credited periodically with interest based on the rolling balance of the remaining amount. If a Fund's remaining amount reaches zero, it must stop accruing its 12b-1 charges until it has new sales that increase the remaining amount. The Fund's remaining amount may be depleted as a result of the payment of 12b-1 fees if, for example, the Fund experiences an extended period of time during which no new sales are made or during which new sales are made but in an amount insufficient to generate increases in the remaining amount to offset the accruing 12b-1 charges.

SHAREHOLDER SERVICING ARRANGEMENTS

The Company has retained the Adviser to serve as the shareholder servicing agent for the Funds pursuant to a shareholder servicing agreement (the "Shareholder Servicing Agreement"). Under the Shareholder Servicing Agreement, the Company pays the Adviser a monthly fee calculated at an annual rate of 0.05% of each Fund's average daily net assets for providing support services to investors who beneficially own shares of a Fund. The Shareholder Servicing Agreement may be continued in effect from year to year if such continuance is approved annually by the Board of the Company, including the vote of a majority of the Independent Directors.

Set forth below are the payments that the Adviser, as the Company's shareholder servicing agent, received from the Funds under the Shareholder Servicing Agreement during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019.

Fund	older Servicing Fees I to the Adviser
Small Cap Dividend Value Fund	\$ 209,971
Small-Mid Cap Value Fund	\$ 77,069
Mid Cap Dividend Value Fund	\$ 113,632

PORTFOLIO TRANSACTIONS AND BROKERAGE

PORTFOLIO TRANSACTIONS

The Adviser has discretion to select brokers and dealers to execute portfolio transactions on behalf of the Funds and to select the markets in which such transactions are to be executed. The primary responsibility regarding portfolio transactions is to select the best combination of price and execution for each Fund. When executing transactions, the Adviser will consider all factors it deems relevant, including the breadth of the market in the security, the price of the security, the financial condition and execution capability of the broker or dealer and the reasonableness of the commission. Transactions of the Funds in the OTC market may be executed with primary market makers acting as principal except where the Adviser believes that better prices and execution may be obtained elsewhere. The Adviser will not allocate brokerage on the basis of the sale of Fund shares; however, the Adviser may allocate brokerage to broker-dealers who have sold shares of a Fund, but any such allocation will be based on price and execution, and not the sale of a Fund shares. In accordance with the provisions of Rule 12b-1(h), each Fund has implemented and the Board of the Funds has approved policies and procedures reasonably designed to prevent the use of brokerage on Fund securities transactions to promote or sell shares of a Fund.

BROKERAGE

In selecting brokers or dealers to execute particular transactions and in evaluating the best price and execution available, the Adviser is authorized to consider "brokerage and research services" (as those terms are defined in Section 28(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934), statistical quotations, specifically the quotations necessary to determine a Fund's asset value, and other information provided to each Fund, or the Adviser. The Adviser is authorized to cause a Fund to pay a broker or dealer who provides such brokerage and research services a commission for executing a portfolio transaction which is in excess of the amount of commission another broker or dealer would have charged for effecting that transaction. The Adviser must determine in good faith, however, that such commission was reasonable in relation to the value of the brokerage and research services provided, viewed in terms of that particular transaction or in terms of all the accounts over which the Adviser exercises investment discretion. It is possible that certain of the services received by the Adviser attributable to a particular transaction will benefit one or more other accounts for which the Adviser has investment discretion. The "bunching" of orders for the sale or purchase of marketable portfolio securities with other accounts under management of the Adviser to save brokerage costs or average prices among them is not deemed to result in a securities trading account.

In valuing research services, the Adviser makes a judgment of the usefulness of research and other information provided by a broker to the Adviser in managing the Funds' investment portfolios. In some cases, the information, (e.g., data or recommendations concerning particular securities) relates to the specific transaction placed with the broker but for greater part the research consists of a wide variety of information concerning companies, industries, investment strategy and economic, financial and political conditions and prospects, useful to the Adviser in advising the Funds.

The Adviser is the principal source of information and advice to the Funds and is responsible for making and initiating the execution of investment decisions by each Fund. However, the Board recognizes that it is important that the Adviser, in performing its responsibilities for the Funds, continues to receive the broad spectrum of economic and financial information that many securities brokers have customarily furnished in connection with brokerage transactions. The Adviser believes that it is in the interest of the Funds to consider the value of the information received for use in advising the Funds when compensating brokers for their services. The extent to which such information may reduce the expenses of the Adviser's management services to the Funds is not determinable. In addition, the Board understands that other clients of the Adviser also might benefit from the information obtained for the Funds, in the same manner that the Funds might also benefit from the information obtained by the Adviser in performing services for others

Although investment decisions for each Fund are made independently from those for other investment advisory clients of the Adviser, the same investment decision may be made for both a Fund and one or more other advisory clients. If both a Fund and other clients purchase or sell the same class of securities on the same day, to the extent the Adviser is able to do so, the transactions will be allocated as to amount and price in a manner considered equitable to each. There may be circumstances under which, if orders are not placed with or through the same broker or executed in the same market, such allocation will not be possible. In those cases, each client will receive the price on its individual order, and a Fund may therefore have higher or lower prices for securities purchased or sold on the same day by the Adviser for other clients.

The Distributor became the distributor of the Funds on February 28, 2017. Prior to that date, KIC served as the Funds' predecessor distributor. The following paragraphs provide information for the Company's past three fiscal years, ended September 30, 2019, 2018, and 2017, regarding brokerage commissions paid to the Distributor or the Funds' predecessor distributor, KIC. That information includes: (i) the total amount of brokerage commissions that each Fund paid to brokers other than the Distributor or KIC; (ii) the market value of the transactions on which those brokerage commissions were based; (iii) the total amount of brokerage commissions that each Fund paid to the Distributor or KIC; and (iv) the total market value of the transactions on which the brokerage commissions paid to the Distributor or KIC were based. Those paragraphs also provide information on the percentage of brokerage commissions that each Fund paid during the year that were paid to the Distributor or KIC.

For the fiscal years ended September 30, 2019, 2018 and 2017, Small Cap Dividend Value Fund paid to brokers, other than the Distributor or KIC, brokerage commissions totaling \$630,844, \$70,133 and \$72,030, respectively, on transactions having a total market value of \$347,559,431, \$53,334,932 and \$63,431,081, respectively. For the fiscal years ended September 30, 2019 and September 30, 2018 and the period from February 28, 2017 to September 30, 2017, Small Cap Dividend Value Fund paid the Distributor brokerage commissions of \$0 on transactions involving the payment of commissions having a total market value of \$0. For the period from October 1, 2016 to February 28, 2017, Small Cap Dividend Value Fund paid KIC brokerage commissions of \$0 on transactions involving the payment of commissions having a total market value of \$0. Of the brokerage commissions paid by Small Cap Dividend Value Fund for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2019, 2018 and 2017, 0% were paid to the Distributor or KIC in connection with transactions involving securities with a market value equal to 0% of the total market value of securities on which Small Cap Dividend Value Fund paid commissions. The above commissions do not include commissions paid on those transactions when Small Cap Dividend Value Fund purchased securities directly from FINRA market makers on a principal basis. During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019, Small Cap Dividend Value Fund did not acquire securities of its regular brokers or dealers or their parents.

For the fiscal years ended September 30, 2019, 2018 and 2017, Small-Mid Cap Value Fund paid to brokers, other than the Distributor or KIC, brokerage commissions totaling \$176,677, \$97,569 and \$81,059, respectively, on transactions having a total market value of \$128,716,451, \$94,628,075 and \$91,262,724, respectively. For the fiscal years ended September 30, 2019 and September 30, 2018 and the period from February 28, 2017 to September 30, 2017, Small-Mid Cap Value Fund paid the Distributor brokerage commissions of \$0, on transactions involving the payment of commissions having a total market value of \$0. For the period from October 1, 2016 to February 28, 2017, Small-Mid Cap Value Fund paid KIC brokerage commissions of \$0 on transactions involving the payment of commissions having a total market value of \$0. Of the brokerage commissions paid by Small-Mid Cap Value Fund for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2019, 2018 and 2017, 0% were paid to the Distributor or KIC in connection with transactions involving securities with a market value equal to 0% of the total market value of securities on which Small-Mid Cap Value Fund paid commissions. The above commissions do not include commissions paid on those transactions when Small-Mid Cap Value Fund purchased securities directly from FINRA market makers on a principal basis. During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019, Small-Mid Cap Value Fund did not acquire securities of its regular brokers or dealers or their parents.

For the fiscal years ended September 30, 2019, 2018 and 2017, Mid Cap Dividend Value Fund paid to brokers, other than the Distributor or KIC, brokerage commissions totaling \$104,765, \$74,016 and \$65,918, respectively, on transactions having a total market value of \$95,526,874, \$68,418,709 and \$100,160,393, respectively. For the fiscal years ended September 30, 2019 and September 30, 2018 and the period from February 28, 2017 to September 30, 2017, Mid Cap Dividend Value Fund paid the Distributor brokerage commissions of \$0, on transactions involving the payment of commissions having a total market value of \$0. For the period from October 1, 2016 to February 28, 2017, Mid Cap Dividend Value Fund paid KIC brokerage commissions of \$0 on transactions involving the payment of commissions having a total market value of \$0. Of the brokerage commissions paid by Mid Cap Dividend Value Fund for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2019, 2018 and 2017, 0% were paid to the Distributor or KIC in connection with transactions involving securities with a market value equal to 0% of the total market value of securities on which Mid Cap Dividend Value Fund paid commissions. The above commissions do not include commissions paid on those transactions when Mid Cap Dividend Value Fund purchased securities directly from FINRA market makers on a principal basis. During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019, Mid Cap Dividend Value Fund did not acquire securities of its regular brokers or dealers or their parents.

CONTROL PERSONS AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS OF SECURITIES

For the purpose of this SAI "control" means: (i) the beneficial ownership, either directly or through one or more controlled companies, of more than 25% of the voting securities of a company; (ii) the acknowledgment or assertion by either the controlled or controlling party of the existence of control; or (iii) an adjudication under the terms and conditions of the 1940 Act, which has become final, that control exists.

As of January 1, 2020, the Directors and officers, as a group, beneficially owned in the aggregate the following percentage of the Funds' equity securities:

- 7.74% of Small Cap Dividend Value Fund;
- 8.47% of Small-Mid Cap Value Fund;
- 31.63% of Mid Cap Dividend Value Fund; and

As of December 31, 2019, the following persons held of record more than 5% of the outstanding shares of the Funds:

Principal Shareholders - Small Cap Dividend Value Fund Class A Shares

Name and Address	Parent Company	Jurisdiction	% Ownership	Type of Ownership
Pershing LLC 1 Pershing Plaza Jersey City, NJ 07399-0001	Pershing Group LLC	N/A	14.52%	Record
Charles Schwab & Co. 211 Main Street San Francisco, CA 94105-1905	N/A	N/A	8.34%	Record
Wells Fargo Clearing Services, LLC 2801 Market Street St. Louis, MO 63103-2523	N/A	N/A	6.73%	Record
Charles Schwab & Co. 211 Main Street San Francisco, CA 94105-1905	N/A	N/A	6.15%	Record
Raymond James 880 Carillon Pkwy St. Petersburg, FL 33716-1100	N/A	N/A	5.03%	Record

Principal Shareholders - Small Cap Dividend Value Fund Class I Shares

Name and Address	Parent Company	Jurisdiction	<u>%</u> Ownership	Type of Ownership
Charles Schwab & Co. 211 Main Street San Francisco, CA 94105-1905	The Charles Schwab Corporation	N/A	21.39%	Record
National Financial Services, LLC 499 Washington Blvd Jersey City, NJ 07310-1995	N/A	N/A	18.41%	Record
UBS WM USA 1000 Harbor Blvd., 5th Floor Weehawken, NJ 07086-6761	N/A	N/A	14.84%	Record
Wells Fargo Clearing Services, LLC 2801 Market Street St. Louis, MO 63103-2523	N/A	N/A	10.59%	Record
Pershing LLC 1 Pershing Plaza Jersey City, NJ 07399-0001	Pershing Group LLC	DE	8.83%	Record
Raymond James 880 Carillon Pkwy St. Petersburg, FL 33716-1100	N/A	N/A	5.52%	Record
Morgan Stanley Smith Barney LLC 1300 Thames Street, 6th Floor Baltimore, MD 21231-3496	N/A	N/A	5.52%	Record

Principal Shareholders – Small-Mid Cap Value Fund Class A Shares

Name and Address	Parent Company	Jurisdiction	<u>%</u> Ownership	Type of Ownership
Pershing LLC 1 Pershing Plaza Jersey City, NJ 07399-0001	Pershing Group LLC	N/A	27.53%	Record
Raymond James 880 Carillon Pkwy St. Petersburg, FL 33716-1100	N/A	N/A	9.89%	Record
Wells Fargo Clearing Services, LLC 2801 Market Street St. Louis, MO 63103-2523	N/A	N/A	5.95%	Record
Morgan Stanley Smith Barney LLC 1300 Thames Street, 6th Floor Baltimore, MD 21231-3496	N/A	N/A	5.61%	Record
LPL Financial 4707 Executive Drive San Diego, CA 92121-3091	N/A	N/A	5.21%	Record

Principal Shareholders – Small-Mid Cap Value Fund Class I Shares

Name and Address	Parent Company	Jurisdiction	% Ownership	<u>Type of</u> Ownership
Charles Schwab & Co. 211 Main Street San Francisco, CA 94105-1905	The Charles Schwab Corporation	N/A	26.40%	Record
National Financial Services, LLC 499 Washington Blvd Jersey City, NJ 07310-1995	N/A	N/A	23.22%	Record
LPL Financial 4707 Executive Drive San Diego, CA 92121-3091	N/A	N/A	18.72%	Record
Wells Fargo Clearing Services, LLC 2801 Market Street St. Louis, MO 63103-2523	N/A	N/A	8.13%	Record
Raymond James 880 Carillon Pkwy St. Petersburg, FL 33716-1100	N/A	N/A	7.27%	Record

Principal Shareholders – Mid Cap Dividend Value Fund Class A Shares

Name and Address Pershing LLC 1 Pershing Plaza Jersey City, NJ 07399-0001	Parent Company Pershing Group LLC	Jurisdiction N/A	% Ownership 16.71%	Type of Ownership Record
Charles Schwab & Co. 211 Main Street San Francisco, CA 94105-1905	The Charles Schwab Corporation	N/A	14.47%	Record

Wells Fargo Clearing Services, LLC 2801 Market Street St. Louis, MO 63103-2523	N/A	N/A	11.92%	Record
UBS WM USA 1000 Harbor Blvd., 5th Floor Weehawken, NJ 07086-6761	N/A	N/A	10.77%	Record
Raymond James 880 Carillon Pkwy St. Petersburg, FL 33716-1100	N/A	N/A	8.07%	Record

Principal Shareholders – Mid Cap Dividend Value Fund Class I Shares

Name and Address	Parent Company	Jurisdiction	<u>%</u> Ownership	Type of Ownership
Charles Schwab & Co. 211 Main Street San Francisco, CA 94105-1905	The Charles Schwab Corporation	DE	29.42%	Record
National Financial Services, LLC 499 Washington Blvd Jersey City, NJ 07310-1995	N/A	N/A	28.72%	Record
JP Morgan Securities LLC. 4 Chase Metrotech Center 3rd Floor Brooklyn, NY 11245-003	N/A	N/A	9.65%	Record
Wells Fargo Clearing Services, LLC 2801 Market Street St. Louis, MO 63103-2523	N/A	N/A	9.07%	Record

PROXY VOTING

As the beneficial owner of the Funds' securities, the Company, through its Board of Directors, has the right and the obligation to vote the Funds' portfolio securities. The Board of Directors has delegated the voting power for the Funds' securities to its investment adviser. The Adviser has adopted proxy voting policies and procedures for all of its clients, including the Funds. Those policies and procedures will govern each Fund's voting of portfolio securities, except to the extent varied by the Company's Policies and Procedures, in which case the Company's policies and procedures will govern.

The Company's Policies and Procedures are based on the following assumptions:

- Voting rights have economic value.
- There is a duty to cast an informed vote.
- Funds securities must be voted in a way that benefits each Fund and its shareholders solely.

The following is a summary of the manner in which the Company would normally expect to vote on certain matters that typically are included in the proxies that each Fund receives each year; however, each proxy needs to be considered separately, and the Company's vote may vary depending upon the actual circumstances presented. The Adviser utilizes the services of a third-party, proxy voting adviser to analyze ballot initiatives and decide the manner in which it intends to vote. The Adviser will generally vote in-line with the third-party adviser's recommendations, but may, at times, vote differently when it believes that such a vote is in the best interests of the client.

Proxies for extraordinary matters, such as mergers, reorganizations and other corporate transactions, are necessarily considered on a case-by-case basis in light of the merits of the individual transactions. KFI will rely upon the Adviser's analysis of management proposals, which it will make on a case-by-cases basis (e.g., election of Directors, ratification or selection of accountants, executive compensation, stock option plans, indemnification of Directors).

All other issues brought forth will be reviewed by the Adviser on a case-by-case basis with the sole aim of enhancing the value of each Fund's assets.

Although the Adviser does not anticipate that proxy voting will generally present a conflict of interest between a Fund, on the one hand, and the person exercising the vote (the Adviser, the Distributor or affiliated persons of the Adviser or the Distributor), on the other, the Adviser recognizes that it is possible that a conflict of interest could arise. If the Adviser identifies a situation that it believes presents a conflict of interest, and if that situation requires a vote on a specific matter (e.g. an anti-takeover matter), as set forth above, then the proxy will be voted in accordance with the predetermined policy without regard to the conflict. If there is no predetermined policy, or if the policy requires management to exercise judgment, then (i) if the perceived conflict involves the person exercising voting judgment on behalf of a Fund but does not involve the Adviser, Distributor or any other person controlling those entities, the exercise of voting judgment will be made by another officer of the Fund who does not have the conflict; (ii) if there is no other officer of the Fund who does not have a perceived conflict or the conflict involves the Adviser, the Distributor or someone who controls either of them, the Adviser will seek approval of its vote from the Independent Directors (which approval need not be at a meeting but may be by separate telephone conferences, depending on the time available to vote); or (iii) the Adviser may retain an independent third party to make a determination as to the appropriate vote on the matter, and may cast the vote in accordance with the determination.

Every August the Company files with the SEC information regarding the voting by the Company of proxies for securities of each Fund for the 12-month period ending the preceding June 30th. Shareholders are able to view such filings on the SEC's website at http://www.sec.gov. Shareholders also may obtain a copy of the Proxy Voting Policies and each Fund's proxy voting record for the most recent 12-month period ended June 30, free of charge, by contacting the Company at 1-800-422-3554.

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP ("PwC"), 300 Madison Avenue, New York, New York 10017, is the independent registered public accounting firm for the Funds. PwC provides audit services and tax return preparation services in connection with the Funds.

COUNSEL

Paul Hastings LLP, 200 Park Avenue, New York, New York 10166, serves as the Company's legal counsel.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

SHAREHOLDER MEETINGS

The Company's Articles of Incorporation do not require that the Company hold annual or regular shareholder meetings. Shareholder meetings may be called by the Board of Directors and held at such times that the Directors, from time to time, determine for the purpose of the election of Directors or such other purposes as may be specified by the Directors.

REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS BY SHAREHOLDERS

The Company's By-Laws contain procedures for the removal of Directors by its shareholders. At any meeting of shareholders, duly called and at which a quorum is present, the shareholders may, by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the votes then entitled to vote at an election of Directors, remove any Director or Directors from office and may elect a successor or successors to fill any resulting vacancies for the unexpired terms of removed Directors.

Upon the written request of the holders of shares entitled to not less than ten percent (10%) of all of the votes entitled to be cast at such meeting, the Secretary of a Fund shall promptly call a special meeting of shareholders for the purpose of voting upon the question of removal of any Director. Whenever ten or more shareholders of record who have been such for at least six months preceding the date of application, and who hold in the aggregate either shares having a NAV of at least \$25,000 or at least one percent (1%) of the total outstanding shares, whichever is less, shall apply to a Fund's Secretary in writing, stating that they wish to communicate with other shareholders with a view to obtaining signatures to a request for a meeting as described above and accompanied by a form of communication and request which they wish to transmit, the Secretary shall within five business days after such application either: (i) afford to such applicants access to a list of the names and addresses of all shareholders as recorded on the books of the Company with respect to a Fund; or (ii) inform such applicants as to the approximate number of shareholders of record and the approximate cost of mailing to them the proposed communication and form of request.

If the Secretary elects to follow the course specified in clause (ii) of the last sentence of the preceding paragraph, the Secretary, upon the written request of such applicants, accompanied by a tender of the material to be mailed and of the reasonable expenses of mailing, shall, with reasonable promptness, mail such material to all shareholders of record at their addresses as recorded on the books unless within five business days after such tender the Secretary shall mail to such applicants and file with SEC, together with a copy of the material to be mailed, a written statement signed by at least a majority of the Board of Directors to the effect that in their opinion either such material contains untrue statements of fact or omits to state facts necessary to make the statements contained therein not misleading, or would be in violation of applicable law, and specifying the basis of such opinion.

After opportunity for hearing upon the objections specified in the written statement so filed, the SEC may, and if demanded by the Board of Directors or by such applicants shall, enter an order either sustaining one or more of such objections or refusing to sustain any of them. If the SEC shall enter an order refusing to sustain any of such objections, or if, after the entry of an order sustaining one or more of such objections, the SEC shall find, after notice and opportunity for hearing, that all objections so sustained have been met, and shall enter an order so declaring, the Secretary shall mail copies of such material to all shareholders with reasonable promptness after the entry of such order and the renewal of such tender.